
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, September 10th, 2019.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member



Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member (absent)
George Kimmerling, Board Member (absent)

ALSO PRESENT:




Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director, DOTS

Michael Cunningham, Assistant Town Attorney 




Michael Preziosi, Director, DOTS


*



*



*
CHANGE TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated tonight there is a change to the agenda. The Resolution for PB 2019-3 which is the Todd Young request for a special permit for an accessory apartment; that will be adjourned per the applicant’s request.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated this afternoon we received a request from the applicant’s attorney asking for a one month adjournment on this application.



*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF JULY 23, 2019 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I have a motion to adopt the minutes from last month?
So moved. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I just have one or two I talked to Chris about. I’ll give them to him. I’m just going to submit one or two minor.
Seconded.

With all in favor saying "aye". 


*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE

PB 1-11      a.
Letter dated July 31, 2019 from Keith Staudohar requesting the 1st, 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Hanover Estates subdivision located on Croton Avenue.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 19-19 approving the extension.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

PB 9-99      b.
Letter dated August 27, 2019 from Linda Whitehead, Esq. requesting the 32nd, 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Furnace Dock Inc. Subdivision located on Furnace Dock Road.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we adopt Resolution 20-19.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
*



*



*
RESOLUTION 

PB 2019-3  a.
Application of Andrew Young and Susan Todd for a Special Permit for an accessory apartment in an existing accessory building located at 48 Pond Meadow Road as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Todd Young Residence” prepared by James J. Moorhead, R.A. dated February 19, 2019.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that was the resolution that we already announced would be adjourned.
Mr. Michael Cunningham stated this will be adjourned per the applicant’s request. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we adjourn this application to our October meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARING (ADJOURNED FROM LAST MEETING)

PB 2018-23 a.
Public Hearing - Application of Mahlab Family Realty, LLC for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for a proposed 3 lot major subdivision of an approximately 25 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Teatown Road, approximately 5,000 feet east of Quaker Ridge Road, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary Plat” latest revision dated November 14, 2018 and on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Existing Tree Survey” latest revision dated April 8, 2019 both prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated good evening.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I’m Ralph Mastromonaco. We are still in a public hearing but I will say that since the last meeting we had I did get some letters from one of the neighbor’s. I responded to him twice. We did look over the video of the last public hearing, encapsulated some of the comments that were made at that meeting, provided a written response since that meeting. Probably three or four pieces of correspondence went to you since then but it’s still a public hearing. If you want to continue, I’ll be happy to step aside.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing. If there’s anyone who wants to address this application either for or against please come up to the podium and state your name and your residence.

Mr. Bruce Kay stated Madame Chairperson, members of the board, interested parties and guests, my name is Bruce Kay, I and my wife Angela own the home located at 130 Teatown Road. Our property sits on the immediate adjacent lot to the northeast of this Mahlab proposed subdivision and I’m here again in opposition to the applicant’s plan and intentions as proposed for this site. When I appeared before this body on July 27th my initial remarks focused on when and why my wife and I chose our present Teatown home and the proximate cause for our relocation to it after the catastrophic 9/11/2001 event. My remarks then were intended to provide the board with an overview background in understanding of my personal opinion and observations of the applicant’s proposed plan. Strangely, if not ironically, we meet again on this anniversary eve of that tragic and historic event to address the issues, site conditions and the implications of the pending application’s reasonableness in the context of Cortlandt’s adopted guidelines and procedures. This evening rather than perseverating on my personal feelings and opinions I would like to focus my remarks on three basic relevant issues for a concern. First, in which I have made reference to in my prior statement to the board, Teatown Road’s designation as a historic dedicated road. Secondly, the need for a comprehensive examination evaluation of the applicant’s plan as proposed. And third, the feasibility and economic reality of the plan on the table for consideration. When I brought this designation to the board’s attention it seemed as if the news to several members was something that they were not familiar with. If I remember correctly, Mr. Kessler inquired of the Town Engineer if Teatown was in fact on the town’s register as a dedicated historic road. Upon response, I believe Mr. Preziosi advised in the affirmative. A follow-up question by Mr. Kessler asked if the board or the town had ever made exceptions to historic road dedication requirements for development purposes. And again, if my memory serves me correctly, the response was: rarely under certain circumstances at times. I called the board’s attention to the Master Plan and the inclusion/adoption of this historic road committee’s commission report by Lawson Fisher Associates dated January 2007 and further acknowledged in the Master Plan. Specifically, that report cited 14 Cortlandt Town roads of historic character and significance declaring Teatown Road with the highest rating of all roads named in the report for preservation. I urge the board to review that report’s Teatown Road description excerpt as it clearly recommends that it not be disturbed and further, specifically it recommends that Teatown Road be designated as a historic and scenic road with specific protections for pavement width, preservation of stone walls, mature trees, stringent requirements for new development. And again, I’m reading directly from that report. Also to consider, fostering a nomination of this road and environments to the National Registry of Historic Places. Third, protect the road from stripping treatment and fourth, limit traffic and advisory signs to the greatest extent possible. As the board is well aware, the applicant’s plan as proposed drastically requires the road to be widened, sections of the parcel’s stone walls to be removed and would potentially disturb the immediate environments and the parcel’s unique ecology. In Mr. Mastromonaco, forgive me sir pronouncing your name, your written response dated September 3rd, 2019 to the Planning Board’s Director in reference to the July 27th meeting amongst other counterpoints to the testimony of the opposition speakers he states, and I quote: “stone walls are to be removed to access the site. The walls are not in any way unique or well preserved.” With all due respect sir, that comment is not only disingenuous it cavalierly attempts to negate specific historic road requisites that are of vital importance to maintain the Teatown road’s historic character. I personally have trouble understanding how or why one property owner’s ill-conceived subdivision that as proposed disregards adopted historic road fundamental guidelines can countermand not only the will of the immediate neighbors but the intentions of all approximately 28 families that reside on Teatown Road as we in unison are in opposition to the applicant’s plan. Obviously the parcel is of great significance and importance not only to the residents of Teatown Road but to the Teatown Lake Reservation which is the largest property owner in the immediate vicinity to ecologically environmental advocacy groups such as the Westchester Land Trust and other environmentalists throughout the county. Given all these issues and concerns that have been expressed to the board regarding the application, what is truly needed now is for a comprehensive and full environmental impact study coupled with the array typically performed studies for water, septic, traffic, etc, need to be performed for the board to have a reasonable and clear understanding upon which to base its decisions for approval, rejection or modification of the applicant’s plan. I and all of Teatown Road’s residents urge the board to require the applicant to have such studies performed before the question can be called for a vote. And then third, finally, the feasibility of the plan and its economic reality. In actuality, the site is not economically developable. As I understand, the applicant in its [inaudible] real estate tax appeal argument has stated that the parcel is undevelopable. The parcel slopes. The overall terrain is drainage environmentally sensitive conditions are not conducive to the site’s development as proposed. And the applicant is keenly aware of this. No legitimate experienced builder would entertain such development as the cost to effectuate and sell homes in an instant market demand price is not economically achievable. So why are we here? In my personal opinion, the applicant’s plan has been engineered and designed as a foil to induce if not intimidate local preservationist groups to pay a price for the parcel greatly above its current true market value. I believe this is all a ruse as the applicant has no intention of ever building on the site, rather to extort those who really care about the road who’s genuine interests are to preserve the site, its environments, our Teatown Road and its ecology. In fact, offers have been put on the table and are reflective of the parcel’s true value but have been rejected by the applicant as being insufficient. I urge the applicant’s principals – are they here tonight? I guess they don’t care enough. I urge the applicant’s principals to resume negotiations with the Westchester Land Trust, the Teatown Lake Reservation and its supporters to coming to a reasonable and timely property sale understanding. In absence of such good faith in negotiations I personally envision a long protracted expensive approval process if not eventual disapproval process in which the resources of our Teatown community will be marshaled in continuing opposition. I thank you.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked question for you. Would you feel differently if they wanted to build one home there?

Mr. Bruce Kay responded I would look at it objectively at that particular point. Depending on the site constraints and what the proposal was. I’m open-minded sir.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but that’s up to the engineering department to work those things out it’s not for the public to work those things out. 

Mr. Bruce Kay stated I’m open-minded but as proposed I am vehemently, as well as my neighbors and the entire community vehemently opposed to it as presently before the board on this application. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked I have a quick question Mr. Kay. Is your driveway the one just before the Planning Board sign?

Mr. Bruce Kay asked which way are we going sir, east or west?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m going south.

Mr. Bruce Kay responded no I’m the other way.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words you’re north of…

Mr. Bruce Kay responded I’m not at the base. I’m above it as the stone walls extend into my property. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so you’re north of where the orange Planning Board sign is?

Mr. Bruce Kay responded yes sir. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated okay, I just wanted to make sure.

Mr. Bruce Kay stated again, I thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Members of the audience applaud.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who wishes to speak regarding this application?

Mr. Larry Provost stated good evening Madame Chairman and members of the board. My name is Larry Provost. I am adjacent to the property at number 116 which is on the east side. The road at that point runs essentially east and west. Mr. Kay touched on a lot of the points that I was going to make so I will not duplicate him. But I just want to bring to the board’s attention that the applicant makes many statements that are either incomplete or inaccurate. Yesterday I got a copy of the short environmental assessment form and they answered question #5: “is the proposed action consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?” They answered: “yes” and I would submit that the answer to that is no that both historic road study and the Master Plan call for protection of stone walls and protection of the road width. Number 7: “is the site of the proposed action located in or does it adjoin a state listed critical environmental area?” They answered “no” to that and the correct answer is yes; it’s adjacent to the Indian Brook Reservoir. It’s been noted by Westchester County in January of 1990 of having an exceptional and unique character. There’s a very handy and comprehensive electronic way to answer these required questionnaires. You can try this out for yourself under the full environmental assessment form site and you enter the lot number and it will search the various databases and come up with certain questions that it automatically checks the box. When I did that the question, the corresponding question on the full form comes back that the Indian Brook Reservoir is a listed environmental critical area. Question 8: “will the proposed action result in substantial increase in traffic above present levels?” The applicant answers “no.” and I would submit that since there are, to my count, 29 residences on Teatown Road, adding three more is more than 10% increase and I would call that substantial. The question #12: “is the proposed action located in an archeological sensitive area?” The applicant answers “no.” The automatic form filling answers “yes” and it says that it is located in or adjacent to a designated sensitive archeological site on the New York State Historical Preservation Office Archeological Site Inventory. The question 17 which is dear to my heart: “will the proposed action create storm water discharge? Will the storm water discharge flow into adjacent properties?” The applicant answers “no” and I went into this extensively in the last meeting. The answer to that should be “yes.” The water, every drop of water up the hill is going to come down onto my property. I’m directly below that. I would submit that the environmental assessment form is inaccurate and incomplete and I would urge the board to require a full environmental assessment form and an environmental impact statement be prepared on this site. You’ve received letters from the Westchester Land Trust, the Village of Ossining, the Town of Ossining, the Town of Cortlandt, Teatown Lake Reservation and others indicating that this site is environmentally sensitive and it’s important to protect it. So I would urge the board to require the completion of the form and an environmental impact statement. Further, in the last meeting the issue of the historic road study and the town Master Plan was brought up and the question was asked: does the board have discretionary leeway as to not going by the recommendations? I would call your attention to Local Law 1620-10 and 188-2 talks about subdivision or site plan approval by the Planning Board and incidentally section 1 names Teatown Road as one of the protected roads of historic scenic road; 188-2(a): “with respect to any subdivisions or site development plan approval before the Planning Board the Planning Board shall consider and determine that any construction or site alteration approved will be compatible with the objectives of the Master Plan with respect to historic / scenic roads.” So I would suggest to you that that limits the discretionary power the board to negate the requirements as to shared driveways, storm runoff mitigations and the stone wall protection and pavement width protection. Further, 188-3: “the Planning Board in granting subdivision and site development plan approval along historic roads as identified herein shall determine that the construction or site alteration approved will be compatible with the legislative intent of this article.” Clearly the Town Board has set guidelines and the Master Plan and historic roads have sort of indicated what needs to be protected. And I submit to the board that they should not approve this development as proposed and perhaps send the applicant back to the drawing board to come up with a proposal that would be consistent with the legislative intent of the Master Plan and historic roads study. I thank you for your time. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked thank you. Is there anyone else? From staff, do you have any comments that you want to make relative to this…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I think we discussed at the work session that I believe the Engineering Department would like to see an alternative of the driveways combined which would minimize impacts, minimize the number of curb cuts and maybe further protect the stone walls.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated just to echo Chris’s sentiments, a couple of quick things, we did also have a question pertaining to the posted speed limit on Teatown Road. It is 30 miles per hour not 15 or 20; those are advisory signs. So if the speed limit is 30, the site lines of the driveways would have to be reanalyzed and reevaluated for 30 per hour speed limit which would necessitate some additional changes to the potential scope of clearing, etc, along the historic road. So to Chris’s point, what we would like to see is that revised along with a rendering of restoration for the historic wall or to preserve portions of the wall along the frontage of the proposed lots. With that, we also feel it’s reasonable to ask the applicant to combine, I believe it’s lots 2 and 3, the site driveway and then have a shared entrance off of Teatown to also minimize the disturbance along a historic road and potentially minimize tree disturbance and clearing requirements. Then finally I do wanted to stress that this is a three-lot subdivision and the applicant will be required at the time of filing for a building permit to design for storm water controls which would entail water quality controls. It doesn’t reach the limit of requiring extensive water quantity or detention systems but it does require and the applicant will address water quality concerns vis-à-vis rain gardens infiltrators, etc, whatever best management practices are recommended and suggested by the design professional. Some are shown on the plans right now and at this stage it’s enough for sufficient information. There are a few items that need to be addressed. So that’s why we are also suggesting in the last item we’ve discussed at a few work sessions would be to protect the remaining portion of the site since it is the head waters to the Indian Brook and the reservoir potentially consider a conservation easement or some other sort of protective measure for the unused land from the development. So those are the options and those are the recommendations of staff.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are you aware of these particular conditions?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded actually it’s the first I’ve heard of any comments but I can deal with them. They’re not complicated comments. But I will say that I am surprised that Mike thinks that the speed limit is 30 miles an hour. The only sign we could find was a 20 mile an hour – it’s not an advisory sign, it’s a speed limit sign. Even if it was an advisory sign it would still be the speed limit.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s an advisory sign.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a yellow sign. It’s advisory. It’s not the speed limit of the road. It’s advising you that in that particular area, due to site constraints, you’re supposed to slow to 20 miles an hour.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I’m just saying that is a speed limit sign. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no it’s not.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated if you look at the manual in your traffic control devices and also…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated you can get a ticket for doing 22 miles an hour on that stretch. 

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated I prosecute tickets and I’ve never seen one.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated yes you can get one. You can get a ticket for doing 22 miles an hour there. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated a white sign is enforceable. An orange one is just recommended.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated absolutely untrue.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated and according to section 16629(a) of the vehicle traffic law, the town can’t even make the speed limit less than 30 unless it’s in a school zone. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated well it’s posted here as 20 miles an hour so that’s where we go the 20 miles an hour. If you think you can do 30 miles an hour down that road…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s 30 but we will confer with our Highway Department to make sure those signs are changed out and the proper advisory signs are placed in its place.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated just so you know, the proper way to do this would be to take some speed readings there and take the 85th percentile speed and I guarantee you it will be 20 miles an hour. If you want to go down that route, we will happily do that for you.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we weren’t suggesting it but if you want to do a spot speed study.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I’d be happy to do it.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated okay, we’ll do a spot speed study.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and I wasn’t at the last meeting but I believe it was represented even at the last meeting to combine the driveways and I think in one of your written responses you said that that would be, to paraphrase that would be complicated or it’s not…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s not our plan. The problem you have when – and I don’t know if the board understands this, but whenever you have a common driveway, it looks good on paper but it creates huge problems down the road.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked Ralph, isn’t it really a moot issue because you’re not developing the land. You said that at the meetings. So why do you care if it’s one driveway or three driveways?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I’m going to tell you why.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated please.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded before we do that, Chris would you mind zooming out a little bit. You’re not really showing the whole property on that map. Just a little bit. I want to show you the whole property. I don’t know if you have a pointer but can you outline the whole property for the board? The property’s quite large and we’re only developing a little – you can see where we’re developing. We’re only developing that part; that one little part. I think Chris is going to go around the property for you. We’re only developing that tiny little part of the property. That’s not the property. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s the part you’re developing.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated right, but the property itself, it’s hard to tell. It’s basically almost that whole map is our property. We’re only developing that lower right corner of the property. That’s it. When Chris had it blown up there it looked like we’re developing the whole piece or something like that. That is the extent to which that property can be developed. We can’t put any more lots on that property. So the rest of that property would be protected by default. It would be protected piece of property. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but you didn’t address Steve’s comment about whether you’re actually going to perfect the subdivision to build the houses. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated as I said on day one when I first came here is my client has from the beginning tried to preserve this property and every step of the way it’s been made harder and harder for them and some of it by this board, by inflicting studies and delays and other studies today. They would like nothing better than to preserve the property but the property has value to them. They’re not developers. They’re just regular people, inherited the property. If there was a way to do it, they would do it, I guarantee it. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked it seems as if one of the crux of the problem is that they do not wish to accept the price that has been offered for that property. Am I correct in that?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded we believe that the price is dependent on how many lots you can develop there. That’s the value of that property if you’re going to look at – I don’t know why your board looks at financials here but the value of that property is based on how many lots you can get out of that property. There’s three lots, however those cash out, that is the value of the property. What they were offered was probably half of what that three lots would get on a regular real estate market. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there were grants that were submitted – requests for grants that were submitted earlier…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded not by us, no. That was by Land Trust I believe. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what was the situation there? Does anybody know?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I believe that they were awarded the grant but they need a willing participant I believe, a willing partner. I believe they were able to apply for the grant with permission and they received the grant. They can speak to it if they want to. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Ralph you didn’t answer the driveway question. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded why do I care? Only because, generally my rule has been never to make common driveways. They just lead to problems. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s a personal thing. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, I mean how much less disturbance would there be with a common driveway? Not much less. It would be 24 feet wide and these are two twelves so what’s the gain? 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think the suggestion we were making is hearing the neighboring property owners and their concerns to the disturbance of the historic roads and historic characteristics of Teatown, by combining the site access into one location, you may be able to minimize site clearing requirements, etc, and could potentially preserve more of the historic characteristics of the road. That’s why we asked for that alternative. It may turn out that  you’re right and two is just – has less disturbance than the one but we’d like to see that exercise…
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I will do the exercise. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked Ralph, considering what Mike just said and some of the comments from the neighbors, is there any discussion or has there been any discussion in reducing the number of lots and specifically, lot #1 which has its own curb cut if you will on Teatown Road and/or combining that with a common driveway with the other two lots? Has there been any discussion in reducing the number of lots or any – if this were an environmental impact statement there would have to be an alternative. I guess I’m looking to see if there’s an alternative. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded we’re certainly a two-lot subdivision is not our application. Our application is for three lots.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I understand that but I’m asking if it would be considered, to minimize some of the impacts that we’re talking about.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I tried to show you. We’re only developing a portion of this property. This is 25 acres. We’re developing maybe three acres of it. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this was discussed at the last meeting. I watched the video. All those grey areas, the two grey areas on Teatown Road, one for both of the driveways and the other one for the lower driveway is changes that you need to make to the character of Teatown Road for those driveways.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded along the frontage, yes. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would like that to be reduced.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I can certainly, in the exercise that I do for Mr. Preziosi I will see what I can do to reduce it. You’ve got to remember that that road – the reason for those darker areas is because Teatown Road is narrow there and in order to get a truck or something into that driveway you have to make a sweep on the driveway otherwise you’d be in the gutter on the other side of the road. I think Michael understands that. I’ll show it. I’ll be a little bit more clear and show why we need that and it’s also to gain the sight distance. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked can we get from the Land Trust on that point?

Ms. Lori Ensinger stated good evening Madame Chairperson and the board. I’m here to answer questions about the status of the grant and also to potentially clarify what actually happened. We’re not here to advocate for or against a subdivision. We just don’t do that as a policy. And I did submit a letter as some of the comments alluded to back in November where we cited multiple plans in which this property is specifically reference for its importance from an environmental perspective because the Indian Brook does flow through the property and that is the drinking water for the Town of Ossining, the Village Ossining and Briarcliff so thousands of residents depend on what happens here. I would just clarify, and I know we all know this, but whether or not the entire 25 acre parcel is developed into house lots isn’t the only factor that we need to think about. Even if it’s only three house lots, and we’re not here to say if one, two or three house lots is the right number but if it’s three and not seven, that’s not necessarily protecting the water quality, because remember if the steep slope characteristic, the topography of the land is such that the disturbance goes right up to the steep slope line. And one of the critical issues around water protection is runoff from development, runoff from lawns, fertilizers, septic tanks, etc. So you don’t need to develop the other 19 acres in order for the brook or the pond to be disturbed. It will happen as a result of whatever development occurs there. Also, whoever ends up owning the estate sized lot will have unfettered access to the entire 21 acres unless there’s some sort of protection. This plan doesn’t preserve, doesn’t affirmatively preserve the conservation values of the other 19 acres. So that’s something that we would offer our services to the applicant in conjunction with the town to reach an acceptable compromise that the town would like to reach with the applicant. Again, we don’t have an opinion on whether it’s one, two or three. What we would like to say publicly is, the applicant has every right to develop this property and we are not standing in the way of doing that unless we are prepared to buy the property. Now with respect to the question specifically about the state grant, when I wrote the letter in November we had submitted the grant to the DEC, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation. We did not have a contract with the applicant. Our negotiations, as you said, were not fruitful. We submitted the grant anyway because we were permitted to without a contract. We have – the state will allow up to five years to consummate a project for which they were awarded the grant. We were awarded the grant but I need to be very clear that once you accept a grant from New York State, this is reimbursement grant by the way, we don’t have a check. We don’t have any cash whatsoever, and the state can choose to withhold the money if we don’t meet very, very high criterions, strict criteria for valuing the property. So the applicant would need to agree to a process that is designed by the state and defined by the state to include two appraisals not just one, two appraisals of the property as it stands and whatever the state currently is; raw land or fully approved subdivision plat with one, two or three lots. So an appraiser would not be able to submit an appraisal of this property if it’s raw land without a subdivision approval and appraise it as if it were worth the same price of three approved lots. Mr. Mastromonaco is correct, there’s a difference in the valuation between raw land and fully approved sub-dividable land. Even before you put in the improvements in. We’re not even saying build a road. But everybody knows that when a builder looks at raw land on the market to buy, he’s not paying fully approved sub-dividable value. He’s paying raw land value because he builds in a builder’s profit and the cost to develop it, the time value of money to go through this process of getting the approvals and the time to market those parcels for ultimate sale. That’s how the market works. That’s why there’s a gap in value between raw land, which is what we were offering the family because there was no concept at the time of the subdivision, and what it could potentially be worth after this board approves whatever the final shape of the approval is. But we can’t – the state will not accept. We’re not trying to be the bad guy here. The state will not work with us and therefore we have no funding to buy this property unless the applicant agrees to the appraisal process that the state defines. 
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so would the appraisal, before anything is approved, before we make a decision, the appraisal would just be based on the land itself at this point?

Ms. responded yes, because an appraiser, a licensed appraiser is not permitted to appraise something hypothetically as if some unknown approval came through a year from now, a month from now, or never. So they have to approve it based on what’s feasible and realistic based on what they know today.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and what’s the size of the grant that you got?

Ms. responded I won’t reveal that publicly. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked you’ve already had discussions with the applicant right?

Ms. responded the discussions we had terminated before we submitted the grant so I have not spoken with him since.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I kind of think that maybe they should really be made aware of the things you’re telling the board now. Perhaps they’re not totally, fully aware of how this works and why they are not likely to get much more than the price for the land.

Ms. stated we will be happy to have that conversation again. We did discuss the details of how the process worked but I’d be happy to have that conversation again if they’re interested in reaching out to me. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and certainly if the applicant wants to go ahead and put the three homes on lot – or price it as if he was going to have the three lots there, we would then as a board have to ask for certain other additional I guess tests and surveys, etc because there are clearly certain issues that derive from them developing these three lots that they are proposing. It may not be as easy for them when you look at them getting the three lots as if they were building on them as opposed to just dealing with the raw land. They may have to spend more money to get what they want. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded what do you mean?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the issue here at the bottom is money for the applicant. They want more money than they’re going to get, period. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I think this is taking the wrong turn. I don’t think this board should be discussing dollars and cents. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no, we’re not going to talk to you specifically about financing but underneath all of this is they didn’t get the money that they wanted so they’re sort of – we’re not moving in that direction. I don’t know what we’re going to do as a board. The land is what it is and it doesn’t have any housing on it at this particular point. If you’re going to put houses on those lots that you’ve defined then there’s probably going to have to be a lot more testing, surveying, etc, because we always do that especially where steep slopes are concerned and critical environmental issues would exist. We can’t just give them permission to put three homes without doing anything more rigorous than what’s always been done. We have to do more rigorous planning for those homes. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked when would that be?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded I believe we stated at the early onset of this application that the town’s position is reviewing this as if it’s going to be a subdivision. That’s our purview. Whether or not the lots are built, if the subdivision is approved they then have ability to make an application for three building lots. You have to go through this process to complete a subdivision application whether or not there’s an intent to build in a year or two year’s time, it’s this board’s and our responsibility to review this as a subdivision application regardless of who’s buying the land.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated let me just try to be clear. We would like the three lot subdivision. When that map is filed, we will have a new value for that property. If Land Trust and other people can get together and somehow get close to that number, it’s preserved. If they can’t…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but our decision may be based on whether the rest of that property is – we’ve done that before and it may be based on that you may lose. If you’re leaving it at that point. That’s all you’re giving us. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated this veer into finances is just – I’m very uncomfortable…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked what’s going to happen to the rest of the property? It may be a condition that it’s got to be a conservation easement.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we approved plenty of subdivisions with conservation easements.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded but a conservation easement won’t affect the value. 
Mr. Steven Kessler asked what?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded it may not affect the value. It may improve the value.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it may or may not. As you said, we don’t care about that. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but that may be a condition of approval.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but we care about conserving the access to that.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I believe that we’re conserving the greater part of the property. Chris always zooms in on…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated someone’s going to own it under your proposal. 

 Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked pardon me?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded one of those owners will own the rest of that land, correct?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated what we’re saying is perhaps the home owner should not own that land and should be put in a conservation easement.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated because we can’t trust that what’s going to happen 20 years from now.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded you mean the part of the property outside of the lot 3 residential plot. Yes, well that’s up to you guys.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated exactly. Okay, we’re in agreement.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated if you’re not giving us any other option that may not turn out to be what you want.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated we have no other option. We have no option.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated you can say that the rest of the land will be conservation easement. That’s an option.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated we won’t volunteer that. You can do that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it may be a condition of approval. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated you can do that, yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re in agreement.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it doesn’t change the value. It makes life more complicated. It’s not a conservation easement. It would be protected somehow. It would be an easement. It would have to go to somebody. Who would be the person to go to? It would complicate our approval somewhat but it’s up to you guys.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we recommend that this be referred back, adjourned.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked close the public hearing?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked can I make a statement? As far as the public hearing goes I’d like to ask you to close the public hearing. The public has spoken.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated not happening. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but there are going to be revisions. The public should have the chance to see those revisions; what Mike and others are asking for in terms of a reconfigured layout.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s up to you.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn the public hearing and refer this back to staff.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just on the question, please revise the EAF or at least answer Mr. Provost’s questions whether you agree or not with the EAF.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, sure.

Mr. Michael Preziosi asked we also have our comments to you by the end of the week. Do you feel you have sufficient time to address the changes for the October or would you like to adjourn it to November?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s an early October?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no it’s a later – it’s October 10th.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I will – I think you have to adjourn it to October 10th and I will – I heard your comments. I don’t think they’re anything that I have to really worry about.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ll still memorialize them. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated Mrs. Chairman there’s one other matter. I have another matter on this agenda tonight at the very end. If your board would let me speak to that application it would save me some trouble today. It’s at the very end of the application. The Bastys application. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no I think we have questions about that.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded well I can answer them now.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, but that’s not fair to everybody else. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t think so. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t know what the other application is.  Which one? At the very end?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s 16A under new business.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s the first item under new business. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t care either way. It’s up to the board. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I’m asking just to move it up here. You’re going to refer it back anyway. You’re going to refer it back to staff anyway.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you know Ralph there was a way to do this rather than stand there. You could have come…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I just saw it tonight. I’m sorry. 

Seconded, with all in favor saying "aye". 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated your thing is adjourned until October. Now we have to make a decision here. Do we want to take this quickly, and it needs to be really fast. You’re going out of order.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I know. You’re going to refer it back to staff anyway.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I have no objection.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m for it because you’re standing right there. Let’s just go through this quickly and get it done. I don’t know about the rest of the people on the board. Steve, what are you thinking?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I defer to the Chair. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated that’s okay. I was going to wait until after the public hearing but that’s okay.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s make it very quick. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated five minutes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated five or less.
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PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)
PB 2019-13 a.
Application of MCAS Roofing & Contracting for the renewal of a Special Permit for a Specialty Trade Contractor and for Amended Site Plan approval for an approximately 1,160 sq. ft. storage shed located at 2006 Albany Post Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Amended Site Plan for MCAS Roofing and Contracting, Inc.” prepared by Joseph C. Riina, P.E. latest revision dated July 16, 2019 (see prior PB 4-16).

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated how are you?
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked this is a public hearing. Did you want to make comments?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded this is an application for a specialty trade…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Michael, just introduce yourself for the record.

Mr. Michael Casolaro introduced himself. I’m the president of MCAS Roofing and Contracting. I’m applying for a specialty trade permit. It’s being requested that I have enclosed storage for debris. I found that over the last couple of years I’ve had my specialty trade permit for three years. I need a little bit more storage to keep everything contained, neat and clean. That’s the reason for this application.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing. If there’s anyone here who wishes to speak for or against this applicant’s request, please come to the podium and state your name and residence. No one? Staff, anything you need to say on this one? Board?

Mr. Robert Foley asked there’s no impacts to the adjoining property?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no. They were all notified of the public hearing. To Mr. Casolaro’s point you probably recall you approved this three years ago and there was some discussion about storage in the back and being a contractor he does have some materials back there so in his own judgment he decided he needed a bigger building to clean up the back of the site. We analyzed whether any variances were needed and determined that they’re not after some discussion. We have no issues with the application.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated and the impacts were mitigated. We were just concerned with redirecting storm water which it’s being directed away from the property line. The incidental tree removal will be requested to be replanted. We’re satisfied with the revisions. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing and have staff prepare a resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for the October meeting. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated Michael you can start making application to the Building Department for the shed. 

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated thank you. Have a good night.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

PB 2019-11 b.
Application of Dimension Energy LLC, for the property of Croton Realty and Development, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit and for Tree Removal, Steep Slope and Wetland Permits for a proposed Solar Energy System known as the Croton Avenue Solar Project located on the east side of Croton Avenue approximately 500 ft. north of Furnace Dock Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development for Croton Avenue Solar Project” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated July 17, 2019 (see prior PB 1-11).

Mr. Kieran Siao stated good evening. It’s good to see all of you. Thank you for having me again. My name is Kieran Siao. I’m a Project Development Manager from Dimension Energy. We are a community solar developer based out of Atlanta with major offices in San Francisco and New York City where I sit. We’re here tonight because we are proposing to develop a three megawatt AC community solar project located at 200 Croton Avenue. It is the site that was previously reviewed and approved by the Planning Board as the Hanover Estates project which was a residential subdivision. Looking forward to hearing any comments tonight but before we get there I just wanted to prod a couple of updates on our project since we last met in July. So the first one is, since our July meeting, we have received the results back from our CESIR study by ConEd. This is the utility study to see how the project would interconnect to the local distribution grid. The results were very positive. ConEd determined that the project would be able to interconnect to the grid with some very minor upgrades to the local distribution system mainly comprised of extending their local distribution feeder across the street on Croton Avenue over to our parcel and then some very minor balance system equipment like transformer and some pole mounted equipment. That’s great news. We’re really excited to receive that feedback. As we discussed at the meeting in July, outside of the local approvals this interconnection study was the last remaining open item in developing this project. As we discussed, our project is fully financed. We have our construction contractor Protec Energy Services on board. We’ve also secured supply for solar panels from Longi Solar. So now that we have this interconnection study in place, we have already paid our first installment to ConEd. This local approval process is our final remaining milestone. So once we have these permits in hand, we could be positioned for success to break ground in the spring. Outside of the utility study, one aspect of the project that was considered by the Planning Board at the July meeting was: what kind of noise might be experience associated with this project from our equipment, like the string invertors as well as ConEd’s transformers on site? We approached this in two different ways. The first thing we did is we hired CNS Engineers, they’re an engineering consulting firm to perform a noise analysis of the project. Essentially what they did is they created a model of the project and they established eight points around the perimeter of the parcel. And the purpose of the exercise was to see how the noise would attenuate to hear what level of noise would be experienced at these eight different areas around the parcel. This is detailed in the report but of these eight locations around the parcel, the loudest decibel reading that would be perceived from the project is around 39 decibels. This is great news because it is within the town’s noise ordinance for this residential district which is 65 dba during the day and then 55 decibels at night. For comparison, 40 decibels is around what you would hear at a library. So it’s very quiet and it’s lower than what is typically considered residential background noise which is around 50 decibels. So the study shows that if you’re standing at the parcel boundaries, based on the way we’ve designed the project and based on the way we’ve maintained the local setbacks 200 feet from the parcel boundary, this project will not be heard above local residential background noise. The second thing we did was we invited the Planning Board to attend a site visit for a completed solar project. We visited the Millbrook school solar project which is located at Millbrook Preparatory school around an hour from here. We really lucked out that day because it was a project that Solar City, which is now part of Tesla, completed it in 2014 for the school. It is 1.7 megawatts AC so around two thirds the size of our project and this array meets the electrical demand for the entire campus. So it was a really great project for them. And fortunately Tesla’s operations  and maintenance team was there that day so we were able to walk inside the fence line, get up close and see the panels, see how Tesla’s team performs operations and maintenance; mainly seasonal mowing which is very similar to what would be performed on our site. We were able to hear the noise generated by the string invertors and the balance system equipment as the system was operating. And I think Chairwoman Taylor, Mr. Bianchi, Mr. Foley, if you would agree, I think it produced very little noise if any, if we were able to hear it. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated very quiet.

Mr. Kieran Siao stated that was great to see, right? In addition to that, since our meeting, Keith from Cronin Engineers has been preparing some additional deliverables which were submitted as part of our most recent submission to the Planning Board. Primarily the storm water pollution prevention plan which shows the storm water best management practices that would be employed during construction and stabilization after construction. It also outlines our native pollinator seed mix that we would utilize on site. It includes photos of each these species and what they would look like on site. So I know question during the site visit to Millbrook is what that under the panels would look like, whether it would just be grass or colorful wild flowers and it would be the latter. And that could be reviewed in the storm water pollution prevention plan. The final deliverable was the tree inventory study that Cronin’s landscape architect performed. They did an inventory of the trees proposed to be removed as part of the project. In addition to inventorying the trees, looked at the quality of each of them whether they were in good or fair condition or dead and dying, in addition, whether they were favorable or unfavorable species. What we found as part of this tree inventory is that the majority of the species proposed to be removed on site are either dead or dying or in poor condition, or are comprised of unfavorable species like tree of heaven, black locust, Norway maple, all of which are introduced invasive and unfavorable species. This supports the planting plan that was previously provided by Cronin in our earlier submittals. In short, a lot of great updates since our last meeting. I think that trip to the Millbrook school was really helpful in seeing what this project looked like on the ground. I’m really excited for next steps here. I’ll be happy to take any questions, otherwise I’ll be happy to hear public comment.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you. This is a public hearing. Is there anyone here who wishes to address this particular application?

Mr. Robert Porr stated good evening everyone my name is Robert Porr. I’m a 33-year resident of Furnace Brook which, for those who are not familiar, intersects Furnace Dock Road in two areas. Today, I wanted to speak to the board about this project. While it’s absolutely spectacular sales presentation I just heard and that every study that was done on this project yielded absolutely fantastic results without any risks being identified, a number of community residents have strong concerns. Number one, we’ve already paid a debt here in the community by allowing the expansion, the home expansion at Valeria. There’s increased traffic along Furnace Dock Road. I walked, since January, probably 200 times along Furnace Dock Road and have noticed the incredible amount of traffic, speeding, disregard for stop signs, hazardous material trucks going through stop signs to go up Mount Airy and so forth. I think the residents of Furnace Brook Drive and Furnace Dock Road have made their accommodations to the town by allowing the Valeria construction, by allowing that development, by allowing that tax base to come to Cortlandt. I believe we’re getting inebriated with tax revenue and the question I need to ask everyone who’s sitting here on the board here tonight and at the town: what is the community benefit of this project? I haven’t seen anything in the seven pages of drawings. I see a development that’s going to occur on Furnace Dock Road right by Furnace Brook Drive, right by the community’s recreation center. Sir?
Mr. Robert Foley stated I think you’re talking about the wrong application. On Croton Avenue.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated this is a public hearing for Croton Avenue, the old Croton Farm, egg farm. There’s another application under new business for a potential solar farm. That’s not a public hearing. That’s just for introduction to the board.

Mr. Robert Porr stated my comments will still be the same, regardless. It’s commercial development for what purpose of community need? Two things: one…

Mr. Robert Foley stated if I may, if you could wait until…

Mr. Robert Porr stated I’m talking about any development of photoelectric farms in the community. They’re both photoelectric farms.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you’re speaking to the solar energy one on Croton Avenue?

Mr. Robert Porr responded that’s a photo voltaic farm, yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but you had mentioned traffic which is a concern of mine.

Mr. Robert Porr stated it’s commercial. Commercial development breeds…

Mr. Robert Foley asked how would it bring more traffic up to Croton Avenue if you have a solar farm, if that happens, as opposed to 21 or 27 homes with a lot of cars in and out? That’s what I don’t understand. 

Mr. Robert Porr responded it’s not trucks, it’s not security. It has a number of different impacts and I’ll ask the question. There’s soil erosion in that area. There’s glare adjoining residences. Properties will be devalued as a result of injecting – sir did you have a comment? You shook your head.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t understand some of the rationale of what you just said about…

Mr. Robert Porr responded commercial development for this type of project will have an impact on the market value of residential homes. Is this in your backyard? Mr. Foley is this in your backyard? I guess that’s the question. 

Mr. Robert Foley responded I’ve got a lot in my backyard. 

Mr. Robert Porr asked there’s a solar farm in your backyard?

Mr. Robert Foley responded no, not yet.

Mr. Robert Porr stated thank you. There’s light pollution from night lights that get installed at these locations. There are a lot of things that I’ve heard, nothing but wonderful benefits but there are no negatives that have been articulated in the seven page plan that I’ve seen and I have yet to see an independent evaluation of the environmental impact, the socio-economic impact, and the people of this community have paid a price in the energy world with Indian Point and residential areas should not be burdened with commercial development. Do we not have enough commercial development in this town? I’m sorry Madame.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m still trying to process the connection you’re trying to make. 

Mr. Robert Porr responded the connection I’m making is these farms are not what they’re cranked up to be. What’s the community benefit of having a farm like this other than commercial tax revenue? Are they going to have jobs, create jobs? Are they going to employ local people or is it just simply a tax benefit? Where does the power go? Is it going to go to my house? Am I going to get a discount because the environment has been compromised, because of photoelectric cells in the ground?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think so but it’s explained if we could get back to this application, it’s explained, probably in the voluminous materials on the application of which we’re supposed to be having a hearing now. Not on yours that you’re addressing.

Mr. Robert Porr responded well it’s both sir.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m not speaking for or against it. I just feel that you’re talking in generalities and I’d like to get back to addressing this particular application.

Mr. Robert Porr stated this application does not address the following sir: it does not address the science and the effect of heat. There’s an NIH study that talks about heat island effect and the increase of heat and ground temperature. It’s already – we’re getting warmer and warmer every day. Now we’re adding another component that will add heat to the environment. It’s a fact; NIH funded study. Has that been referenced in the article, in their application?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I think you should raise the issues and then it is up to the applicant to answer the question. I would just keep raising the issues that you want to raise. It’s up to the board whether they want to have a back-and-forth but I would raise your points so the applicant has to answer them.

Mr. Robert Porr stated and I guess the question of the community benefit. We believe it’s a false narrative that solar is going to offer some community benefit. This community has already paid the price by having energy, organizations, companies coming into the area. And I just point to a simple example which is Indian Point. Haven’t we done enough for the environment? Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else who wants to speak on this application?

Mr. Brian Stoller stated good evening, my name is Brian Stoller. I live at 230 Croton Avenue which is the – on that map, right where the mouse is there. That square…

Mr. Robert Foley asked the intersection of?

Mr. Brian Stoller responded the intersection yes, of Croton Avenue and Furnace Dock Road. I personally love this project. I’m the neighbor. I am legitimately right next door. I share a property line, a very long property line with this project. The traffic along Croton Avenue is quite busy as you know because of the factory across the street so during the day, from 9:00 – 5:00 we have big 18-wheel trucks going down as well as UPS/FedEx trucks. So the noise is quite busy. Not having houses there is actually going to benefit us because we’ll have simply just one or two lawn mowers going off from time to time. So I actually think from a traffic perspective it’s perfectly great. My only concern was the noise and since you had visited and heard the noise nearby, can you confirm the noise was quite low? I believe that it was a 70 decibel noise which is a sound of a vacuum cleaner. It’s not quite library hush. The sound of a vacuum cleaner could potentially reach the property lines quite well, especially in the winter time when the weather is colder and sound does travel further. Also the way that this piece of property is built on the hill, in fact my piece of property the sound does echo so I actually hear car doors closing all the time from this property so if there was a vacuum running from sunrise to sunset I would probably hear that quite loudly where I live. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated noise was a concern of the board and a few of us who did go to a site that had a similar setup. It was as you reported it, it was only about a third of the size of the one we’re going to do. But if we all sit quietly for a second you can hear that. That’s more than what we heard. We were very impressed that it was so very quiet. I don’t think you’ll have a lot to worry about in terms of…

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated and we were only feet from the string inverters and equipment; literally feet.

Mr. Brian Stoller stated then my concerns are…

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated it’s not an issue.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I was the one that brought up the noise and urged the visit. I didn’t think it would be an hour away but it was enjoyable. Yes, as Loretta and Tom have said we were standing right by the large generator, whatever you want to call it. I heard a “click, click” and a very faint whirring and then it ended. I believe I asked the applicant at the site and the similar type of the machinery or mechanism would be located further away from your property, halfway through the arrays. Am I correct?

Mr. Kieran Siao responded that’s correct.

Mr. Robert Foley stated where that center square is. I don’t know. This would be one third larger.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s two thirds.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated it was two thirds I think.

Mr. Robert Foley stated larger than what we saw and there was a lot of farmland and no houses around. I’m not a noise expert but there was hardly any noise, if any at all.

Mr. Brian Stoller stated thank you very much. I actually think this is a great neighbor to have: no dogs barking, no concerns so I endorse this project. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you. Is there anyone else here who wishes to address this application?

Ms. Jessica Nevins introduced herself and stated I live at Apple Hill Drive nearby this project and I came tonight to check it out. So far so good. I would urge the applications to at whatever opportunity engage the local neighborhood if possible. Sounds good to me. I’d much rather have this than 26 homes. It looks good to me. I worked in the solar industry so I’d just invite the applicants, as things progress, to keep your neighbors in mind and thanks so much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on Apple Hill we did address that and I believe staff explained any visual impacts. That was a concern. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I think you can talk about the hand out that we received tonight and the visual impacts of this project, just quickly. 

Mr. Kieran Siao stated first I’d like to thank everyone for the public comments. That was all very helpful to hear. Yes, we did provide some visual simulations that were completed for a handful of locations around the property; one of which is located along Croton Avenue at the southern most portion of the project, one is along the long stretch of road of Croton Avenue which parallels the project…

Mr. Robert Foley stated since it’s a public hearing and we have a copy of this, could you turn the photo board to the audience?

Mr. Kieran Siao stated so we did three different visual simulations: one that shows the current location of the site without the rendering of the solar farm and then one that includes the solar farm superimposed onto the area. We did one at the southern boundary of the project. That’s this one here. If you could see there’s already some existing vegetation at the boundary. Our project based on the design is set back 200 feet to the fence line and then to the actual solar modules themselves there’s probably another 25 to 30 feet. So it’s set significantly far back. We’re also proposing a vegetative buffer along that southern portion as well as along our proposed access road. A significant amount of the project should be screened on that side. The second one we did was from separate points along Croton Avenue, essentially near Sassinoro Boulevard. Again, there is a significant amount of existing vegetation on site. We have both winter and spring photos to see what it would look like both when there’s leaf on and off the trees since it’s mostly deciduous. And then again with the project superimposed in the background. Again, we’re maintaining a minimum 200 foot boundary to the fence line and then another 10 to 15 to 20 feet to the modules themselves. I think a great thing to consider here is that there is a significant amount of topography from Croton Avenue up to the project. The topographical formation of the project site is kind of plateaued so we’re on higher elevation and then along Croton Avenue, that’s significantly lower and then on the other side with the school that’s significantly lower and that southern limit is also lower than our project. From the road, if you were driving by it, it’s very unlikely you would actually see it based on the current change in topography between the road and where our fence line would be located. And then the last one is along Apple Hill Drive. From the road itself, again, winter versus spring and fall we have a significant amount of vegetation along that northern boundary of the property parcel. Again, our project is set another 200 feet back from the neighbor’s property, again with vegetative screening at our fence line. I’d be happy to keep these up for a little while longer so anybody could take a look at them but based on the way we’ve designed the project and based on our proposed vegetative screening, it’s very unlikely that anybody would see the project from any of the neighboring vantage points.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked could you, if you want, it’s up to you, but briefly address the issue of who benefits from the solar power?

Mr. Kieran Siao responded certainly. So I’d be happy to talk through those comments and we’ve covered a lot of ground there so I’ll talk through as many of the issues as I can. First there were concerns about traffic. I’d would definitely like to highlight that this project was previously approved as the Hanover Estates project which was like 27 house subdivision. In comparison, our project – it’s an active approval. In fact, I believe the plat approval was just renewed again tonight. In comparison, our project would have a little bit of traffic during construction which would be a four month period, a handful of trucks that would bring the equipment in, but once the site is operational the project’s unmanned. So there will be no one employed at the site itself and there will be no additional traffic during the operation of the project with the exception of some minor operations and maintenance activity, maybe one or two trucks every couple of months. It would not add to traffic in the community. There was a question about soil erosion. I believe that’s detailed in our storm water prevention pollution plan or SWPPP. We are avoiding the steepest areas on site. We are building in the flatter areas on the property. After the project is constructed the site will be stabilized and receded with this low-growth native pollinator species and that will hold the soil in place. In comparison to the proposed Hanover Estates project and even in comparison to the current use on site, our project would have less impervious surface and compared to Hanover Estates we would have significantly less overall earth disturbance. We’d be disturbing much less soils on site. There was a question about glare. We provided a glare analysis in our July submittal. We used a tool called forged solar which was built out of Sandy Laboratories. Essentially what this does is it takes the design of the project and it models any potential for glare based on the position of the sun every minute or every day of the entire year. There are 525,000 in minutes in over an entire year. This analysis showed that our project may result in around 40 minutes of potential glare over the entire year. So that’s very minimal if not negligible. One limitation of this analysis is that it does not consider any existing or proposed vegetation. So it would not take into consideration the significant amount of vegetative buffer that already exists on site around the project or our proposed vegetative buffer that we would be planting as part of the project. Devaluation of properties: that’s not true, that neighboring properties would be devalued. The National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NRL) has done several studies on this. This is not the first solar project to ever be built near neighboring properties, residential properties and their findings show that there is no impact on property value being located in close proximity to a solar project. Light pollution: none. We are not proposing any site lighting. So there will be no additional lighting on site. Heat: I think you may be thinking of concentrated solar and not PV solar because that’s a completely different technology. PV solar has nothing to do with heat production or heat radiation. It is simply – the photons of light, the UV radiation moving across the material of the panel that creates the electrical charge. There is no heat component. And then community benefit: I’m not very familiar with the Indian Point Power Plant. This is a little different in that it’s a community solar project and that the off-takers of this project will be local residents. So once this project is built, or rather I should say, we have already executed an agreement with an organization called Arcardia Energy and their entire job for this project is to find subscribers, residential subscribers who will sign onto this project to be credited for solar – that the solar array produces. So you can kind of think of it as similar to a residential solar array on your roof where you would execute power purchase agreement with a company like Sunrun or Solar City Tesla and you would be buying power from them over the lifecycle of the project and it would be at a rate that’s lower than what you’re currently paying ConEd. This is very similar. The solar energy produced by this project would not directly go to your house. That would just go to ConEd’s grid, however, based on the subscriber agreement you would execute with Arcadia, you would be credited for the amount of solar that your portion of the array produces. Typically that rate is, dependent on how the subscriber agreement is executed, around 15% less than ConEd rates. Another thing to consider is that utility rates escalate over time. So using this Millbrook project as an example, the purpose of that solar array was pretty similar just on a larger scale. Millbrook School executed a power purchase agreement with Solar City to buy energy from them at a locked in rate over the 20-year terms. In the first year of the project, because the power produced by the array offset any electrical means they needed from, I think it’s Central Hudson up there, they save 25 to 30,000 dollars in the first year of production. And because that rate is locked in, that is the rate they’ll be paying over the entire lifespan of the PPA as opposed to whatever rates would be continued to raise over time in that same time period with their utility. So there’s certainly benefits to the community and savings on electrical bills. Noise: 70 decibels, that is the noise rating for the string inverters when you’re standing three feet away from it and noise attenuates the further you get away from it. So the purpose of this noise study was to say: hey we have these string inverters and these transformers. Each of them creates around 70 decibels of noise when you’re standing right next to it. How is that amount of noise decreased as you move far away from it? What they found was that, assuming that all of our string inverters were located at the fence line, 200 feet away from the property boundary, that perceived noise you would hear from the property boundary would be around 40 decibels which is that library comparison as opposed to 70 which you would see if you were standing right next to it at Next Generation. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked I had a question if there’s no other public…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated please come on up.

Mr. Steve Ehrenberg I’ve prepared nothing and I didn’t expect to speak but I’m a little upset. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated you have to identify yourself.

Mr. Steve Ehrenberg introduced himself and stated I live on Furnace Brook Drive. Every day I go to work and I drive down Furnace Brook, up Furnace Dock. I make a turn on Croton Avenue and I’m surprised to hear that there are two farms that are potentially coming in. Is that correct?

Mr. Robert Foley and Mr. Chris Kehoe responded three.

Mr. Steve Ehrenberg stated which it feels like it’s going to change the character of the neighborhood quite a bit. I know the Croton Egg Farm. I assume that’s the one on Croton Avenue, the one that’s up on a hill. Because it’s high up doesn’t mean that you’re not going to see it. You’re probably going to see it even more. You drive by these treed areas, there’s a character to this whole neighborhood and we’re talking about a large area. It feels like I’m going to be driving through industrial areas from now on wherever I go in my neighborhood. I had no idea there was going to be more than one. I knew there was one that was coming next door to our property but now I see that there’s going to be three within an area. That’s pretty extensive. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated there’s only two in your area. One is on Route 6 which is not on the agenda for tonight but it’s not in your area.

Mr. Steve Ehrenberg stated I’m really concerned that when I drive by it’s going to change the character of the neighborhood. Just looking at the plan, it looks like you can see these things from space. I want to know – I don’t know how tall these things are. Do they sit two stories high? What sort of plantings are going to be between the road and these things? I mean, I wouldn’t mind having them instead of housing but still I don’t want to look at them and I don’t want to feel as if – I didn’t move to Jersey because I didn’t want to live in an industrial area. I’m living in just the opposite and I’ve been there for over 40 years. It’s going to be quite a change to the look. I’m really concerned. We’re talking about seeding areas with wild flowers and everything but if there’s some monstrosity that’s going to be the size of the Croton Egg Farm, I’m a little worried about the look of wherever I drive in my neighborhood. I’d like to hear how we’re going to buffer the road from – I just don’t want to see these things.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the entire previous discussion was talking about how this particular site is going to be buffered. So those are renderings of exactly what it’s going to look like. We have smaller versions of those that I’d be glad to give you as well. It’s not my project to defend, it’s up to the applicant but that was the discussion.

Mr. Steve Ehrenberg stated I see trees and I see nothing behind them but there is going to be something behind these open trees.

Ms. Nichole Seidell stated can I point it out? I’m the director of the – nice to meet you. In this one, as you can see, this is existing conditions in the winter, existing conditions in spring and fall. You know it. This is just what it will look like with an artist’s rendering of the solar arrays. And to answer your question, the panels at their maximum height are 10ish feet, 8 feet with the type of panels that we’ll be using so not two stories high, certainly not – about 8 feet from the bottom to the top. There’s about two feet from the ground to the lower lip here. We’ll be planted along the road here to screen from the facility. This is existing trees and this is probably the worst case scenario in the winter but Kieran can speak to all these renderings. But I did want to point this out to you in the backdrop.
Mr. Kieran Siao stated so you can see the trees we would be proposing. They are located along the fence line here. This is of course a rendering. Cronin has provided a planting plan which was submitted as part of our application. It’s a mixed bag of conifer, evergreen…

Mr. Steve Ehrenberg asked is there going to be a berm?

Mr. Kieran Siao responded there’s not going to be a berm but we’re setting back a couple of hundred feet from road and then it will be enclosed in a fence and in front of the fence will be a series of plantings. It’s a combination of deciduous and conifer trees which are outlined, the particular species, in our planting plan which was submitted as part of our application.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated staff just wants to reiterate that there’s three pending applications at various design stages. This application is ahead of the other two so a lot of the questions that have been asked about tree planting mitigation, etc, has been discussed at prior public hearings. The information is available on the town’s website and/or in our office if you want to stop by the Department of Technical Services you can either ask for myself or Mr. Kehoe and we can go over the applications and discuss what’s required. I also want to bring attention to the town’s local zoning ordinance pertaining to solar arrays and mitigation measures. That’s also within the town code book. So all these questions that are more general, they have been addressed in the environmental adoption of the ordinance in the town’s local code. We’re here to address any of those specific questions. If anybody has any comments pertaining to this specific application the public hearing is still open.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just one thing, I know several people are here for the other solar application. This case came in, in April so this is what ultimately will become of the other project. All of the trees were delineated on this property. The wetlands were delineated, photo renderings were required, site visits were taken. That’s why this level of discussion is going on, on this project. This level of discussion won’t be going on, on the Furnace Brook project because that’s the first time it’s on the agenda tonight. It’s not a public hearing. Obviously it will be discussed. That case will be referred back and all of these studies will be required of that case so whether it’s three months or four months or six months from now, these same things will be required of that property. 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated if I could, I just wanted to point out a couple of things. I’m Keith Staudohar from Cronin Engineering. The graphic on the screen right now shows we’re adding anywhere from plus or minus 262, over 330 feet from the nearest panel to the roadway. So it’s basically a football field away and the elevation difference between Croton Avenue and the western side of the array is anywhere from 30 to 60 feet vertical. So it’s up and the whole solar system is surrounded by an 8 foot high black or forest green vinyl coated fence. The likelihood of us seeing anything coming up Croton Avenue from the south is pretty small. We don’t expect that it’ll be seen at all. 

Ms. Barbara Copoloff asked I have a question. My name is Barbara Copoloff and I live at Furnace Brook Drive. Because we’re not going to talk about the other one I just wanted to ask a question about this one. If there’s a storm like Hurricane Sandy and the cells break, is this a toxic situation?

Mr. Kieran Siao responded the way these solar panels are fastened to the rack equipment if we could talk about the architecture of the project, these panels are typically, as we said, the way they’re configured on site around 8 feet long and they’ll stand like a 25 degree angle. They are connected to racking equipment which consists of steel beams which are driven into the ground 10 to 15 feet oriented into bedrock. The way these are attached to the racking equipment itself, it’s been tested in storm conditions. We obviously have – the industry has deployed solar projects both ground-mounted and roof-mounted projects all over the country in some storm areas and these are specifically designed in a way to resist storm level winds. I believe it’s something like 115 miles an hour. Should a solar panel break, the O&M team or the operations and maintenance team would be alerted through their metering system that there’s some sort of fault on site. The inverters would be tripped, so it would be disconnected from the grid and then a tech would be set out to site to make any necessary repairs. With regards to hazardous waste, they’re not considered hazardous waste. It could be recycled just as universal waste at some sort of e-waste facility but if they break there’s no substance in them that would potentially leak onto the ground.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated briefly, one last thing that wasn’t mentioned is the solar ordinance, the solar energy law requires that a bond be posted and in case the project defaults, goes out of business, there’s money that the town keeps in order to disassemble the site. 

Mr. Kieran Siao stated that’s right, and as part of that we’ve provided decommissioning plan to the town that outlines at the end of life for this project how this equipment would be removed either recycled or disposed of responsibly and part of that is also includes a discussion of a decommissioning bond to be executed with the town.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anything else that needs to be discussed here at this point?

Mr. Robert Foley asked I had two quick comments but I’ve added two more based on what the public has said. The first two were, and I brought it up at the work session last week and I know when we were at the site in Millbrook we looked at the ground cover and the grass cuttings. Based on our Holly, the senior fire inspector’s report, I don’t know if the applicant’s seen it but a 10 foot ground clearance around the arrays, the rows. When we were in Millbrook school that was only a few feet. 
Mr. Michael Preziosi stated she’s recommending a 10 foot perimeter around the entire …

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the outside, not between and there’s the road that’s necessary for fire in the middle that you can see on the plan.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated and that’s so a truck can pull up there and be able to reach an issue on either side of…

Mr. Robert Foley stated so it’s 150 foot distance on all portions.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated right, that’s an obstructed pole for a hose.

Mr. Robert Foley stated now another thought, if it is a narrow strip and there’s any kind of a – I don’t know if you’ve faced this, a brush fire, God forbid, how would that affect your arrays and fire department access?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there’s a road in between all of the panels which is where the fire truck would go to be able to fight the fire and then it’s required to have clearance around the outside to drag the hose. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it meets the uniform fire prevention code. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I understand that but if the brush fire developed before the fire department gets there, how does it affect the durability or the content of the arrays? Somebody brought up toxic.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated if I may. We did resubmit a sketch back to Code Enforcement and we did receive Holly’s comments and we provided a simple hand sketch and it was endorsed by your Code Enforcement officer Mr. Martin Rogers. We have to make some minor adjustments to the panel locations but we will be able to provide 10 foot access around the whole system and it’s been signed off and was submitted as part of our August submission.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I guess what Mr. Foley is saying is what happens during a fire?

Mr. Robert Foley stated before the fire department gets there.

Mr. Kieran Siao stated if there is a fire the system will detect a fault that trips the inverters. There’s also several safety disconnect switches in the balances system equipment. There is a low-voltage switchboard which would sit near those transformers and that serves two functions: one is it aggregates all the different wiring from each of those string inverters into one conductor and two, it has a visible lockable disconnect switch which is an NEC requirement, National Electric Code. The feedback we just received back from ConEd also outlines the equipment that they will be installing on site as part of their scope, one of which is a pole-mounted re-closer which you would kind of think as a computer that monitors the system and its attached to a disconnect switch which can be either tripped physically and voluntarily or based on the monitoring from the computer. If there is an emergency event, the switches, either the inverters or the closer or the switchboard would trip, the set would be disconnected from the system. At that point, the tactic used to fight a fire is typically defensive fire fighting right. We maintain this access road which is built to withstand the weights of emergency first responder vehicles. We also maintain this 10 foot clearance for brush hogs and other UTVs or other types of vehicles that the fire department would utilize in a situation like this. They would practice defensive fire fighting which means keep it from spreading to other areas but with regard to the array itself, the typical strategy is just to let it burn itself out.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know there’s a fire house around the corner which is good. You don’t have any kind of sprinkler system.

Mr. Kieran Siao stated no there’s no fire suppression system.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s similar to a cell tower. It’s to let it burn.

Mr. Kieran Siao stated we would be happy before the system is energized to meet with the fire chiefs. Perhaps we can do that as part of the building and electrical permit process to introduce them to this project. It sounds like they’ve already seen. And then once the project is mechanically complete but before it’s energized we’d be happy to do a site walk with the first responders so they can be familiar with the equipment on site.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it may be prudent because it’s new technology, new in town. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the only concern that we would have is that obviously you meet the requirements of the Uniform Fire Prevention Code but if there’s a mechanism to put out a fire would be water based as opposed to a solvent or chemical. 

Mr. Kieran Siao stated it would be water.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I had two other if I could. The grass – has CAC given us a memo yet?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s in here?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated security I brought up. Up in Millbrook it didn’t look like it was a problem. Croton Avenue, because there’s homes around, there’s a school, kids go out. Will you have cameras?
Mr. Kieran Siao responded we are now currently proposing utilized cameras but the site is fenced in. The only access to the site is the vehicle gate that you see represented on the figure and that would be a locked gate with an ox box for first responders.

Mr. Robert Foley stated when you see these arrays, I have a thought, kids use skateboards and stuff so have you ever run into that problem?

Mr. Kieran Siao responded I haven’t and I think one of the benefits of this project – we were very careful when we picked a site. Siting was very important to us and we want to make these things out of sight, out of mind. That is I think a big advantage of this site in that the topography makes it where it’s not visible from most angles. The existing vegetation shields it from view and our additional vegetative screening will further help screen it. Obviously we’re not going to keep this project a secret. Everyone knows it exists but I think the way it’s set back will help deter anyone from entering the site. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think what the public brought up, even though it was off the wrong application, the industrial impact viewscape that’s worthy, not in your case so much, worthy of looking at. These three proposals, they’re three different proposals rest assured and this one is larger in a different area from the other than you guys were addressing. I have concerns which I understand so thank you. 

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated I think the motion should have three components too? The first one should be, if the board agrees, to close the public hearing with a 10-day written comment period. The second aspect would be to direct staff to prepare a memorandum to the Town Board because this also requires special permit from the Town Board. That could start that process and then also to direct staff to prepare some sort of determination of significance like a negative declaration for the October Planning Board meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think we briefly discussed that at the work session. This needs to go to the Town Board for them to contemplate the special permit but they’re not going to issue the special permit until you complete SEQRA so that would direct us to prepare the environmental documents for the October meeting and then if it goes on schedule it would be back in November for you to approve the site plan.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’ll make the motion, we are closing the public hearing not adjourning.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated with a 10-day comment period.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion we close the public hearing and have a 10-day comment period. That’s the first motion. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked do you want them all together?

Mr. Michael Cunningham responded I think it would be best if they were all together. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you should do them all as one motion. The second motion would be to direct staff to prepare…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s do it and then we don’t have to go back over.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked so you want to do three separate one.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s take care of the first one now, now that he’s clear on what we need to do. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the first one is to close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the second one, a little guidance here again.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated so it would be to direct staff to prepare a memorandum summarizing the proceedings before the Planning Board for the Town Board so they can start their review pursuant to the code for their special permit.

Mr. Robert Foley stated second motion is to direct staff to prepare a memo to the Town Board in reference to…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the Planning Board’s review of the application.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated what the Planning Board has been doing and that memo will come, Loretta, under your signature so I’ll prepare it for your review.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so that’s the second motion. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Robert Foley stated there wasn’t a third was there?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to direct staff to prepare a determination of environmental significance for possible adoption at the October meeting.

Mr. Robert Foley stated third motion to direct staff to prepare a memo or document for determination of significance…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated really a determination of the environment significance. It’s most likely a negative declaration.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s the motion.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

PB 2019-1   c.
Public Hearing: Application of Gas Land Petroleum, Inc. for the property of MF Point, LLC c/o Frank Righetti, for Site Development Plan approval, Tree Removal and Wetland Permits and a Special Permit for a gas station with a canopy and a convenience store located on an approximately 1 acre parcel of property at 2051 & 2053 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 21 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan-Gasland Cortlandt” prepared by Chazen Engineering latest revision dated July 9, 2019 (see prior PB’s 16-04, 24-05 & 13-10)

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the Planning Board. Good to see you all. David Steinmetz from the Law Firm of Zarin & Steinmetz pleased to be here tonight representing Gas Land Petroleum. With me this evening my clients both Mitch and Zadon Nesheiwat the owners and proprietors of Gas Land, along with our full development team: my colleague Tim Rogue, Dr. Phil Grealy from MaSer Consulting, our traffic engineer and Chris Lapine from Chazen Engineering as well. As the Chair indicated we’re here tonight, as you all know, in connection with a proposed new gas station and convenience store at 2051 and 2053 East Main Street. This is a zoning compliant application. We are located in the HC-Highway Commercial zone located on 0.97 acres. The application requires both site plan approval and a special permit. We are, as Chris will walk us through in a moment, proposing 6 pumps and 12 fueling position. And kind of the way we want to try and handle tonight, we want to try to be as efficient as possible, I know it’s already – you’re well into your meeting already. We’re going to very briefly walk through the site plan because it is a public hearing. We want to just make sure that’s made part of the record. We’re going to focus with Dr. Grealy primarily on traffic. We’re quite mindful Madame Chair, members of the board, that traffic circulation on Route 6 in and around the intersection with the Bear Mountain Parkway is obviously of concern to your community, to the neighbors, etc. We’re very pleased that Dr. Grealy has been working in close connection and cooperation both with your professional staff, with your outside traffic consultants at AKRF as well as the DOT. We’re at a point now in the analysis and the deliberations of how to deal with ingress and egress to the site, proximate to Parkway Drive and that intersection, the Bear Mountain Parkway and that intersection. We believe that with the installation of adaptive traffic techniques that are being proposed to be installed at the request of DOT, some additional stripping, some modifications to the curb cuts of the site, and the possibility of the widening of Route 6 which Phil Grealy will explain, we believe that the conditions along Route 6 not only will not become worse or more challenged. In fact, we believe that these improvements have the ability to improve the operation of Route 6 and I’ll let Dr. Grealy go through that. I’m pleased that your AKRF memo, which you received I guess about a week or ten days ago, did acknowledge most of what I’m saying and basically concluded a willingness to conditionally accept Mazer Consulting’s traffic report. So we’re going to go through traffic. Number two, as the board knows, there is a wetland in the back left hand corner of this particular property. We’ve submitted a wetland restoration plan. The site currently is not the most slightly piece of property. It has had some challenged automotive uses on there. Some of the buildings, as we saw when we did the site inspection are not in the best of condition and certainly no one has cared for, let alone protected it or enhanced the wetland. We are proposing preservation of the area, wetlands plantings and the enhancement with landscaping and screening. So we think that we will actually be doing an environmental benefit to an existing condition. I know there have been questions from board members about soil condition on site. DT Consulting was detained as the soil scientist and consulting firm. They did a number, I think 6 or 7 soil borings. Two of those borings exceeded the commercial standard. As the report indicated, and I verified today with the soil scientist, Debra Thompson, that was likely “urban fill”. It’s characterized on other sites in and around Route 6. There is no evidence of a spill or an actual environmental condition created from the use of the property. DT Consulting has recommended a soil management plan which I can go through in greater detail, but she explained to me, because I knew the question came up, with quite a degree of confidence that what they’re planning on doing in terms of how soil would be managed that is excavated to put in the gas tanks would be entirely in accordance with protocols. There is no DEC supervision of this because this is not a DEC spill site. So, we believe that soil was properly investigated and it will be properly handled and I can go into greater detail if the board wishes. Next, neighbors. We’ve obviously been quite mindful. I know there are some neighbors here tonight. We’ve been quite mindful of the fact that our neighbors have been watching this application closely. They have lots of good reason to be concerned with everything that happens along Route 6. We believe this is a benefit to Route 6. We believe this is an improvement to the corridor both from a traffic circulation standpoint as well as an esthetic one. I’m very pleased that my clients have met with out two most proximate neighbors. We think we have an understanding with them about improving esthetics and screening both of their property and of our property with the installation of vegetation and fencing. So I think we’ve resolved at least two important issues of concern. I do know that there is council here representing an undisclosed group or individuals or others. All I can say Madame Chair, members of the board, we have reason to believe, and you have heard this before, we have reason to believe that there are interests, let’s call them the gas cartel or other gas stations in and around the area that have actively opposed and sought to oppose this application. This would not be the first time I have encountered that. As I explained to the board representing the BJ’s gas station on Route 202 I was met in connection with that gas station application with unquestionable gas cartel opposition funded by the gas cartel trying to keep out competition. I’m simply going to state, as a matter of law; competition is not for this board’s jurisdiction and deliberation. Competition is permitted under law, it’s permitted under your zoning and it has no place before this Planning Board. Next, I think I’m going to turn it over to the rest of our development team. We’re going to try to move through this as efficiently as possible. I have one last comment before Chris gets up and that is I want to remind the board, as particularly since tonight’s a public hearing, we did submit for the record a number of accolades and written letters of support in favor of Gas Land Petroleum. This is not my client’s first gas station. This is not my client’s first convenience store. This is not my client’s first gas station and convenience store in the Town of Cortlandt. They have received letters of support. I don’t get to say that for a lot of clients that I appear in front of Planning Boards and Zoning Boards where the Chamber of Commerce both in the community I’m doing business and elsewhere have actually written letters of support in terms of what this business can and will do for your community. They’ve been submitted for the record. I’m pleased that they’re part of your record and I’m going to turn it over to Chris Lapine.
Mr. Chris Lapine stated good evening. My name is Christopher Lapine with the Chazen Companies. I’m going to give a brief overview of the site improvements. David touched on a majority of them but just to follow up on his description. The proposed project is going to involve a 2,600 square foot convenience store and gas station facility. There will be up to 6 pump islands as shown with 12 fueling positions. The project site, as it’s located, David mentioned as well is conforms in terms of your bulk requirements in terms of its rear and front yard setbacks associated with the project. We did meet with some of the neighbors, as David had mentioned, and we had submitted to the plans earlier today. Some of the concerns was to increase the level of screening along the Parkway corridor and our plans reflect – we’ve added some additional spruce trees along that corridor. We’ve also shown the erection of about 110 foot, 6 foot high privacy fence along that corridor as well to screen the property further at the request of the neighbors. With regards to the restoration of the neighboring wetland, I do want to point out that restoration’s actually taking place on property that is not ours. It’s DOT property for which the applicant is restoring that piece of property. Access to the site will be via Parkway Drive, a left turn only, right turn in along Route 6 and a full movement I’m going to defer to Dr. Grealy to further discuss that in detail. This application’s also including a pedestrian sidewalk along the perimeter of the project at the request of the board as it ties into the access point at Parkway Drive. I’m going to turn it over to Phil to discuss the traffic improvements. 

Dr. Phil Grealy stated good evening, Philip Grealy, Maser Consulting. Our firm prepared the traffic impact study for the project. Just a little background in history. The aerial you see indicates the location of the site, the Bear Mountain Parkway Extension, Route 6, Parkway Drive, Jacob’s Hill Road, that signal which was installed I think back in 2004 at Parkway Drive. We had designed that signal that was installed there. In terms of the traffic study standard procedures in terms of collecting data, traffic volumes, peak hours, both weekday and weekends, historical data. When we first started with this project we met with the New York State Department of Transportation to get some of their early input and that was how we came up with the configuration that’s shown on the site plan and some of the improvements, what Mr. Steinmetz referred to, the adaptive traffic control system requirements of DOT. There are mitigation measures that were identified in the study and then are part of this application and will be worked through as part of the permit process with New York State DOT. We need a permit to make all of those changes. So just to kind of go through – the study was prepared back in April, submitted to the town. Your consultant reviewed it, gave us comments. We updated the study. As part of the study, not only did we include the traffic from this project, but there were projects that were identified by the Planning Department not only in Cortlandt but in Peekskill and in the Town of Yorktown that would add traffic to the area. So very comprehensive in terms of taking into account all traffic that would be on this section of Route 6 in terms of traffic evaluations. The plan that you see on the screen now is an aerial photograph that depicts Parkway Drive. It shows the access to the site and the eastbound on/off ramp to the Bear Mountain Parkway Extension. When we first started, we identified the need to widen and reconstruct the driveway that exists on the site today and to replace the existing traffic signal at the Parkway ramp connection with Route 6. As depicted on the plan, exiting our site, there would be three lanes: a left lane, a through lane if you were going onto the Parkway and a right turn lane if you were heading back on Route 6 to the east. In terms of the plan included sidewalk improvements, some pedestrian upgrades and basically replacing the entire traffic signal, making sure that the coordination with the signal at Parkway Drive would be handled properly and of course the adaptive traffic signal system. That’s what was included in the traffic study. There were variations allowing left turns into the main access, not allowing left turns into the main access which required anyone coming from the east to go over to Parkway Drive, make a left onto Parkway and then into the entry only driveway on Parkway Drive. So, we had responded to all the comments that we had received from your consultant and just last week we received the latest comments from AKRF, again some technical items which we would work through as part of the work permit with New York State DOT, and then we also received comments late Friday afternoon which I believe the Town has a copy of those, from New York State DOT making some recommendations and some modifications and asking us to look at an alternative treatment out on Route 6. So when we first met with DOT they really didn’t want to have a left turn into our main driveway because of the location relative to the Parkway overpass. As they looked at it in more detail, they made a suggestion to us to develop a left turn lane and the second plan that you see here is a detail in the email from New York State DOT Lance Gorney who’s the Highway Work Permit Coordinator. He had attached a schematic but wanted it to be laid out. On this plan you’ll see arrows for a left turn into the main driveway. Essentially we would be widening from our driveway towards the Bear Mountain Parkway overpass, widening along our frontage to get some additional width. That width would allow a left turn lane so anybody wanting to turn into the station could store in that lane and keep through traffic moving. So this is in response to DOT’s latest review which, as I said we just received late Friday afternoon. We had identified the problem with traffic, especially in the afternoon rush hours coming off of the parkway ramp. Traffic will back up onto the parkway itself. Traffic exiting from the parkway at the signal that queues back up is into the [boring] area of the parkway. One of the recommendations DOT suggested to look at, taking the two lanes and changing them so that you would have a left turn and then a lane that could be used for left, through is going into the station or rights heading towards Peekskill. And what that would do, because the predominant movement is a left turn off the ramp, it would allow greater capacity to exit that traffic. Again, to receive those two lanes, we would have to widen along our frontage to create enough width so two vehicles could turn simultaneously. This plan is in response to the latest DOT comments. It still will go through final review with them but at their suggestion we’ve added to our improvements that were proposed in order to allow traffic to move into the site and also that would lessen some of the traffic increases on Parkway Drive. Where we are in the process now, we have to continue that permit process with New York State DOT. We’ve addressed all your consultant’s comments and one of the recommendations was that we would have a meeting with DOT to make sure that all of the items that the Town is looking for; for example, as part of the adaptive traffic control system, we are proposing to install that system at the eastbound ramp and also at the Parkway Drive and Jacob’s Hill Road intersection. Right now, the system that was installed from the Cortlandt Town Center area with Shop Rite extends but doesn’t include Locust Avenue. There would have to be input whether or not DOT will have us do that. Early when we met with them they felt that that would be something they would do but I think it’s important that for the completion of the system we get that squared away. DOT also looked at the westbound off ramp from the parkway onto Route 6. They’re still reviewing that. One of the things we identified was the potential need for a signal there. They haven’t made a determination yet but that’s something that would be part of it, and at that location we would agree to be a fair share towards that improvement, because the amount of traffic is a lot of traffic already on that section. We would probably be in the order of about 3% of the total traffic there. So we would do a fair share but again these are kind of the final external details that would have to be worked out as part of the work permit and to make sure that the town is satisfied with what those improvements are. DOT will issue the permit but the understanding would be that the town and DOT would be in agreement on what’s being done. That’s a quick synopsis. I know you want to get to the public so I could answer any questions but I think those are the highlights of where we’ve gone from April to the current day. Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I just wanted to add, Dr. Grealy did a great job explaining the memorandum that came in on Friday with the DOT, but one question that staff has and we’ll work this out would be with the potential alternative of the left turn into the project site to eliminate the left turn or the access drive from Parkway into the property. That, as we understand it, is a major issue with some of the residents along Parkway.

Dr. Philip Grealy responded understood. Thank you.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just underscoring Dr. Grealy’s comments and really Mike’s final comment there, just to summarize. The applicant is willing to address all of these DOT issues. All has kind of been the reviewing court of DOT, AKRF and staff, eastbound Bear Mountain Parkway, that double left coming out to improve an existing condition. It’s not something that Phil did say – that stacking that backs up onto BMP now, that’s an existing condition. That has nothing to do with this station. Westbound BMP, same thing. If in fact, DOT makes that recommendation our clients stand ready to assist in that regard, as he said, as a fair share. And the last point, as Mike said, lefts from westbound Route 6, we’d be delighted to see that approved. We think the site functions both ways but we definitely would be in favor of the ability to make that left turn in. Last point that my team wanted to remind me to state, this would be or really the only gas station on the eastbound lane of travel for quite some distance. There are a number of gas stations on the other side. Recently, and I’m sure you’re all aware, the CITGO station on the intersection of Locust and Route 6 closed. That’s the gas station that serviced eastbound Route 6 traffic. Yes there is a gas station further to the east in front of the Cortlandt Town Center but there is quite a run of Route 6 where there is no gas service on the eastbound lanes of traffic and that’s one of the reasons why there is a need and a desire to fill that. There had been two opposing gas stations at Route 6 and Locust. There is only one.
Mr. Robert Foley stated if I may, isn’t there a BP station right at Locust going eastbound? Whatever it’s called. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the point was that the CITGO gas station which had gone in, closed. 

Dr. Phil Grealy stated there are still stations at Locust. It’s really traffic that would be coming from the Peekskill direction, from the west would now have the opportunity to get gas without having to extend further to the east along that section of Route 6.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I appreciate the clarification. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing. If there’s anyone who wants to address this application please come up. State your name and your residence.

Mr. John Didio introduced himself and stated I’ve been a resident of the Town of Cortlandt on 17 Parkway Drive for 58 years. I grew up there catching tadpoles and frogs where it’s the wetland there [inaudible]. So I grew up there and by living there, there used to be one lane each way and there was accidents then and there are accidents now. I hear from the house, fire engines, trucks, Bear Mountain Extension coming out trying to get in. there’s so much traffic there, I don’t even know why this is even a consideration that you’re going to spend millions of dollars to widen two lanes and you have the Bear Mountain Bridge there and trucks can only go 11 feet and two -- only four cars can go there. So I don’t know how you’re going to widen that. And there’s walks there already. So it’s very tight there. With the traffic now, it’s backed up from Locust Avenue onto the light going onto the Bear Mountain Extension. That’s backed up all the way. And when you come down Route 6 from Locust Avenue, there’s cars fighting to get into the left to go onto Bear Mountain Extension left there and cutting each other off before you get to the Bear Mountain Extension. So in consideration with that I’m – what benefit is it going to do to Route 6 do you mean? What is the benefit to Route 6 that this is going to do? That is my question. What benefit is that? I don’t see that as being a benefit. I see it as being a disaster. I see it as it causing deaths. I’ve been there already with what’s there people getting injured. Beginning from Conklin Avenue and Burger King there’s one light there, 250 yards then it goes to the light at King Buffet and Parkway Drive where they cross each other. That’s backed up just now with regular traffic from Burger King to Route 6 to King Buffet. Then 50 more yards you have another light to the Bear Mountain Extension to make a left to go onto Bear Mountain Extension and then you have approximately another 280 yards or 400 yards from the light at Bear Mountain Extension and where ABC Oil Company and the property that Mr. Righetti owned there. There’s another 400 yards to another light. It’s all backed there all the time. People cutting people off. People doing everything, passing. I see that it’s probably best that your gas station not go there because the location’s terrible. Every business that has been there, except Quality Repair Shop who has a great reputation in the community, every other business went out of business. Moretti’s Bar was there, there’s 80s; the Handy Man was there and rented your property. Many people rented your property but they all went out of business. They went out of business because it’s a terrible location. So I don’t know how the location of you having a gas station there and having all this traffic going left and right. I don’t even see who’s going want to go there and risk their life to go into there. Prior, you mentioned that now there’s going to be an entrance on Parkway Drive where we reside. The business that had been there: Quality Auto, ABC Oil, there is an exit from their property to Parkway Drive but I don’t know if it’s a variance or what stopped it but Quality Auto always put trucks there. There is no entrance and exit. Quality Auto does not use Parkway Drive to take their trucks out, their customer’s trucks. There’s no traffic going to Parkway Drive into that opening there. So I don’t know how that’s going to change where you’re going to have people from Route 6 coming up Parkway Drive and driving up our road and making exit and entrance on our private cul-de-sac. It’s not a cul-de-sac it’s actually a circle. As far as you mean the left turn on Parkway Drive, right now there’s so much traffic that people make a right off of the Bear Mountain, make a left onto Parkway Drive instead of a right in Burger King and they make a left on Parkway Drive, they go around and make a u-turn. It’s four lanes there; two lanes each way. How are you going to cross traffic for four lanes to get gas and then go across four lanes to make a left and cut someone off or cut someone off coming down the Bear Mountain Extension? And as you do say, on the Bear Mountain Extension coming from Annsville Creek, whatever that is, east or west and making a right, at one point the Bear Mountain Extension was two lanes there and that became very busy. Now they made it one lane where you go down to Route 6 off of the Bear Mountain Extension and then one lane going straight because that was a hazard. That was accidents. Now you’re right, the traffic is all the way backed up not just rush hour, not in the morning, all the time it’s backed up, and then you have people veering and cutting people off to go left coming down the Bear Mountain Extension going right to Peekskill and left to Mahopac. Everything’s all backed up. I can understand it’s like building the [inaudible] of Atlantic City. Why pay 2.4 billion dollars for a casino that’s going to go out of business when you can spend billions and millions of dollars to have a DOT take their Bear Mountain Extension and widen it? Widen Route 6. Make it nice for sidewalks. There’s sidewalks there already. It’s already congested. It’s already a disaster. I just can’t see how you’re going to risk people’s lives and health by putting that there. I think it’s a bad move. I think it’s all about money. We can get gas anywhere. You can get gas from any places. One gas station, the risk of having one gas station and all the money and reconstruction and the years of paving and all the accidents that are going to happen there is not worth – one life is not worth the money that you’re going to make, if you make money, if it is successful on that property and then also too you have King Buffet. You have a shopping center there with 9 businesses. And we all know been to King Buffet, I’m sure most of us have, that’s a very busy area. Then you built a community, Jacob’s Hill that has 55 and older people and most of those people retire and they’re there to relax. It’s so hard to go down that road and make a left and people let you get into the road when the light changes. Right now it’s just so busy, it’s so unsafe. It’s not about our property value. I don’t care about our property value. It’s not about the value there. It’s about lives. It’s about congestion. People were talking about noise pollution with the solar. How about the noise pollution with the cars? How about the air pollution with the cars and all the things that are there? And I fairly believe that everyone here has been on the Bear Mountain Extension and knows the area and knows that it is really congested, and it is a problem, and it is dangerous. So with that being said, I’m a proud member of the Town of Cortlandt. I think everyone here has done a great job with our taxes and everything here. I just really believe that this is just a nightmare waiting to happen. The only thing that I’ve learned tonight is what I heard here. I didn’t really read any plans or read any other documents about the proposal, just what they said here and I just wrote down the notes that it’s going to, gosh, benefit Route 6. There’s a petition with people saying “yeah put a gas station there. It’s good for you.” They’ve got letters to support to put it there. What will it do? I don’t understand what it’s going to benefit. What it’s going to do. Thank you for your time and I really believe that this here is all about money and it’s going to cost the life of someone that we may know or care about because already without the gas station I’ve seen many accidents, head-on accidents and people lying in the road and motorcycles myself, personally have seen that. And with that being said, thank you for your time. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. John Sloan stated good evening, John Sloan, Parkway Drive. I agree with everything that guy said. That’ll conclude my remarks tonight. The board might remember earlier this year there was a public hearing, not at this board, the Town Board with regard to an application for a youth sports center up by the bowling alley on 202. One of the speakers – people got up from the audience and he turned to the audience and said “excuse me, how many of you wish to vote against a youth facility?” and of course nobody raised their hand. His point being that that goal of what the developer had in mind was truly a good one, however his point went on to say that the main consideration, in fact which outweighs the good was the whole traffic situation up on Bear Mountain and 202. That traffic was explained just as I think lucidly as you heard tonight but like tonight, it was bizarre in what they asked the board and asked the public to believe would be a workable traffic solution. As the Planning Board knows a developer doesn’t care what happens outside his curb cut. A developer’s looking to get approval and a developer’s willing to tell you that magic automatic computer calming techniques and a little curb cut here, and a little slice here, oh yes and another traffic light and some lanes, and some arrows, and rest assured Planning Board that traffic will work when it gets there. Well in this case, like the case on 202, it won’t. It won’t because it matters where you put things. If I poked you in the shoulder, you wouldn’t feel too much. If I poked you in the eye, you’d be doubled over in pain and that’s exactly what is going on here and obviously with a development. You’ve got just a gas station. There’s a lot of gas stations in town so what’s the big deal about that? The big deal is that this is probably the most problematic intersection in the town that you can come up with where Bear Mountain and all of that and what was described come together. And it comes together constantly. Not just at peak hours. Not just a Saturday afternoon. It is constant and only going to get worse. If I were to write or suggest a recent elaboration, like the board should seriously consider denying this application. I think it’s – for a couple of reasons: one is that the statistics, the traffic volumes, the accident rates would support any conclusion that you make that this is simply the wrong project at the wrong place. Secondly, the Town has no – the application has no real demonstrable benefit to either the town itself , ratings, taxable’s are deemed diminimus or to the residents and citizens themselves. Within a 60 second drive there’s four convenience stores, five gas stations, and three huge supermarkets. Clearly, we don’t need a place to buy another ham and cheese sandwich. The last iteration I would say is that with regard to the traffic which Mr. Steinmetz quite rightly pointed out is and ought to be your main consideration here is that the traffic plans when you look at them seriously and say “how would I do this? How would I navigate into the site? How would I navigate along Route 6 if I didn’t want to go into the site and how would I get out of the site?” all really beg for common sense which is denying the application. To have four curb cuts, three egress and one egress side-by-side where else is that in the town? Where else do you find that that’s rational? It’s only proposed because that’s the way the pieces fit if it decides to be approved. It’s not proposed because that makes a lot of sense to anybody up there. I would say this; I would say the residents of Parkway Drive have no problem with development. We understand that it is Highway Commercial. It’s been Highway Commercial since any of us have ever lived there. It’s been there since the gentleman before me said there was a deli that didn’t do much business, there was ABC sports, ABC oil that didn’t do anything and Eagle Sports was there for many years. Before those things I think it was a glacier. When the glacier melted there was nothing else going on. We have no objection to it being Highway Commercial. We have no objection to being developed. What we object to is the kind of high traffic volume, high density development that we’re talking about here in a constant basis. What we would like the board to consider, in fact we think it’s the board’s obligation, is to look at this site and the proposal and understand that really what should be here is some really low traffic impact application, whatever that might be, maybe a mattress factory, maybe a convent. I don’t know but a gas station and a convenience store, the way this is structured, the way it was presented tonight is absolutely the wrong thing, certainly for us residents who have to live there at the foot of our hill but it doesn’t benefit the town. It doesn’t benefit the citizens. It doesn’t benefit commuters. I would hope the board would seriously consider rejecting this application on that basis. Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you. Is there anyone else who wishes to speak?

Mr. Lino Sciarretta good evening Madame Chair, members of the board. My name is Lino Sciarretta partner with the Law Firm of Montalbano, Condon & Frank and representing Sergio Fornelos who’s the property to the rear of the site. Couple of things; I heard the applicant this evening and I echo the sentiments and my client does with respect to what was just stated so eloquently by Mr. Sloan. Couple of things with respect to this application. Let’s start off with the EAF. First of all, this EAF which your board is supposed to take a look at and your consultants to take a hard look needs to be revised. It’s incorrect and it needs to go back and redone. For example, we’re talking about ingress and egress to the site to Parkway Drive. Well I will submit to you on the first page of this EAF, the last sentence says: “there will be no access to the gasoline filling station / convenience store from Parkway Drive with either scenario.” So this EAF talked about two scenarios and it should be revised to reflect what is going on here now. Also with respect to the EAF they talk about traffic and one of the questions that is asked to traffic is whether they will increase the traffic levels. The answer is no in the EAF. Clearly that should be answered yes. Your own consultants, AKRF, have stated that there’s a problem here with traffic. There’s a problem here at this intersection yet the applicant in its EAF has stated there is no problem but your consultant’s own words has stated that “there are significant impacts to northbound left turn movement and southbound approach at US Route 6 / Bear Mountain Parkway.” As a matter of fact on August 22nd I believe, there was a car accident right out front of this site. This is a dangerous site. There was a site visit that we had back on June 2nd and I almost got hit coming out of this site. Again, I believe that was a Saturday morning or Sunday if I believe. I’ve heard the applicant state that this is a permitted us. Well I understand that, I understand what that means. I know the applicant’s attorney well. We all know what that means, however that doesn’t abdicate your role as a Planning Board in taking a hard look. It doesn’t mean that just because it’s permitted as of right that it’s an automatic fait- accompli. This gas station was permitted, well we’re going to allow it. You have to take a hard look, as you know, and when you look at this, when you look at the traffic impacts and I’m going to go further. Let’s talk about the wetlands. There is a wetland, town regulated wetland down this site. We have two 12,000  gallon fuel tanks going on this property right next – and the site work is occurring within that wetland buffer. So again, another environmental impact that needs to be looked at particularly because you’re so close and working within the wetland. With respect to – also talk about traffic. We’ve heard again that the intersection’s going to be changed, altered. New York State DOT has to weigh in on this with respect to the traffic control device. We don’t know that yet. We don’t know what’s going on with respect to the DOT. We don’t know what they’re going to be doing ultimately. We know it’s before them but yet we don’t know ultimately what’s going to happen and a lot of what they’re proposing in terms of mitigation measures depends on what DOT is going to do. Now, my client is right behind there. This is proposed to be a 24-hour convenience station with lights, constant movement, traffic, in-and-out. That’s not appropriate nor right having this is in a residential, backing up against a residential development. Now, again, with respect to this Parkway Drive. Parkway Drive was originally contemplated in the applicant’s own EAF not to be used as an ingress/egress but yet there it is; they’re using it. I submit to you this needs to be corrected. Now, with respect to – I heard also about other gas stations and how I believe I think I counted five gas stations within a mile and a half of this site. SEQRA should also look about saturation. How many more gas stations does this community need? This project needs site plan, special permit, I also believe it’s a lot consolidation that’s required. Again, we understand there’s a traffic report that was done by AKRF but you’re nowhere near getting this project even close to approved in this way. There are legitimate environmental concerns here, significant impacts that your own expert have stated and your experts also have stated that this site exceeds state wide crash rates. There seems to be an accident pretty much routinely at this site by Route 6. When I submit to this board, this should be a full blown environmental review should happen here. You all know what that means. This part II, part III of the EAF should be prepared. This should be really looked at. You should take a hard look at this and examine these impacts because right now, again, with the traffic impact, the wetlands, the tanks that are going to be installed and again, the amount of accidents here and the frequency in which they occur all make this arise to warrant a full blow environmental impact study. With that, I would just submit to you because I know we’ve been here a long time this evening, I would submit that this public hearing remain open and that a scoping session be scheduled for this matter so these environment impacts could be looked at, studied and further comment could be made with respect to this application. Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you. Is there anyone else?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record so the public knows, I think we’re recommending that this case be adjourned so there’ll be another opportunity for the public to comment.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I wanted to ask if the board, any member of the board or staff need to say anything, want to say anything.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in the interest of time, three words: location, location, location. It’s a problem.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I’d also like to echo a sentiment from earlier on a previous application which would be the DOT meeting would need to be scheduled and do you feel there’s sufficient time to make modifications and prepare that alternative with the left turn in before the October 10th meeting?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes we do.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I just want to say that in light of the comments, very good comments that were heard that it’s not our purview to determine whether this should be a gas station or some other operation. It’s our purview to determine whether the application that exists in front of us is acceptable or not. I just want to make sure that everybody understands we can’t say, well it shouldn’t be a gas station, it’s should be something else. That’s not what we do. So the application is what it is and we are here only to reject or accept that application.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you Mr. Bianchi for clarifying that. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and we do want the EAF to be updated. I should have requested that before and maybe it has been.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I was going to respond. I didn’t want to interrupt but since Mr. Kehoe has raised that, I think Mr. Sciarretta does not, obviously though he waived around a lot of things, he doesn’t appear to have the most recent EAF which Chris…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well to that point, we provided that to him.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I can’t speak to what you provided Chris, all I can tell you is that we submitted an updated EAF dated February 20th, 2019 which apparently was not provided. The record should be clear there is an EAF that has been updated to reflect the modification regarding Parkway Drive. Chris, if for any reason you can’t locate it, Chris Lapine knows he submitted it, we’ll send you another one. We obviously want your records to be correct and certainly the neighbors should have accurate documentation. Which brings me Madame Chair to one very quick point just responding to Mr. Sciarretta, again, I’m glad that he apparently knows AKRF. Your consultant did a review. He referenced it but I don’t know whether he was clear on the first two sentences of this report. AKRF has reviewed the response to comments letter dated August 27th and prepared by Dr. Grealy from Maser Consulting for the Gas Land project. Quote “based on our review of the submitted materials, AKRF provides conditional approval of the findings of the traffic impact analysis.” The reason that that’s significant is for somebody to come in front of you and tell you that the record is incomplete or we haven’t done the study or our consultants haven’t examined the issues correctly, you should know, forget what my consultant has done, your consultant has reviewed the materials and does believe that you have accurate information. Last comment, to the extent that anyone thinks that my client is here claiming that this is a fait-accompli, this is anything but a fait- accompli. The I’s will be dotted, the T’s will be crossed. The information will be supplied. The record will be built. We’re very well aware of the fact that traffic is an existing condition on Route 6. As I said earlier, and we believe this record will demonstrate, my client is prepared to assist the town and the DOT in mitigating those existing conditions and there are a lot of good things that can address the comments of Mr. Sloan and others to avoid the traffic conditions that exist at the Bear Mountain Parkway and Route 6. We’ll see you – Madame Chair, we would ask that the public hearing be closed. Apparently your board has made a determination not to do so. We’re going to do nothing other than cooperate with this board, your staff, your consultants and the DOT. We will see you on October 10th. Dr. Grealy will submit any additional information that may be required and we will proceed with the special permit review. We’re happy to answer any other questions that any other board members want to raise tonight.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked is AKRF going to come to the next meeting?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes, we’re going to be trying to schedule a meeting with the DOT up in Poughkeepsie to discuss this alternative and these traffic improvements. I do want to also stress it was discussed briefly at our last meeting in July and also recommended by AKRF which staff also strongly recommends would be to install the adaptive traffic signal at Locust Avenue and evaluate that and the potential improvements with the revised traffic study and the alternatives because that will create a linkage from Yorktown all the way through to the Jacob’s Hill traffic light with the one progressive system and that’s really what the intent of that system was, not the piece wise and the gap in between the corridor. But it’s something we would suggest be analyzed and included with the…
Mr. David Steinmetz stated Dr. Grealy is prepared to look at that and provide an opinion and work with your staff and DOT. Thank you Madame Chair.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it would be good to have them here next meeting because…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated they will be. 

Ms. Rita Sloan stated hello, my name is Rita Sloan. I live on Parkway Drive. I just wanted to respond to Mr. Bianchi. I don’t think, maybe you misunderstood what residents feel. It’s not a gas station that’s a problem, it’s the traffic that that type of business will cause to Route 6 and to the residents of Parkway Drive. Currently, if you know the business that’s there, it has very little traffic. There are very few cars that go in-and-out of that current location. As was stated, two of the businesses are closed, the smaller ones. The larger business has very little traffic going in-and-out of there at any given time. As a resident of this area for over 40 years, I drive on Route 6 numerous times a day. The traffic is horrendous. You all know that. I’ve seen, I think you call them bubbles or lines where people are not supposed to make turns. People make turns. That’s true of the new location where Shop Rite is. People are doing illegal turns in-and-out of there every time you go there. People turn in illegally into certain businesses on Route 6 so that some traffic remedies are being proposed don’t necessarily help the neighborhood, don’t necessarily help traffic. It sometimes makes it – you think you’re making an improvement that doesn’t improve the situation. It causes accidents. It causes traffic delays. I think anyone who drives on Route 6 can tell that there’s lots of problems on Route 6 today. I haven’t heard anything tonight that’s telling me it’s going to improve the traffic on Route 6 from where I live all the way up to the Cortlandt Town Center. Thank you. 

Ms. Theresa Galasso stated good evening. My name is Theresa Galasso. I live at 28 Parkway Drive. I have a question about this extension on Route 6 that is going to allow people to make a left into the gas station. This is the light where Quality is. This is the entrance right into their place. If you extend that entrance a bit, right now it’s tiny, it’s really tiny. It’s not like your typical left hand turning lane where you’ve got a good stretch. You’re lucky you can fit one car there. My question is, if you give this a little bit more space, you’re really not going to give it a whole lot because you’ve got a bridge there. The bridge does not have sidewalks underneath it. There is very limited space that you can extend. Now, how are you going to put an oil tanker which is going to refill all of these gas station pumps to get into this gas station? It’s going to be an awkward, hard left turn to get in that’s got a cab, it’s got a tank. If you can’t do it without jackknifing this truck, the option is going to be Parkway Drive. Now, this is a residential street. Who wants to have an oil tanker on their street gaining access to this monstrous gas station? It’s a really limited space for you to do much modification to make this all right. My son just learned how to drive. My first thing to teach him was to watch what’s going on at that Route 6 and Bear Mountain Parkway entrance where Popeye’s used to be because you do not see what’s going on and if a person decides that they’re going to tear out and make a left hand turn there, somebody’s going to die. Somebody has died right there. There’s so many limited options there and that oil tanker issue is going to be a regular thing because you’re going to have to refill these tanks. Just something to think about. Thank you.
Mr. Chris Lapine stated real quick for the record, I just want to point out that the tanker truck will be coming in a right turn, that right turn lane off of Route 6 where we have the underground storage tanks on our site plan. And they’ll be filling there an exiting a left turn out. I’ll be submitting a plan to that effect as well.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they will be scheduled so that they cannot make a left in.

Mr. Chris Lapine responded you’re correct.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that can all be incorporated as a condition of this special permit. We’re quite well aware of turning templates and making sure that they’re safe ingress and egress for the trucks. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair, I move that we adjourn the public hearing to October. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

*



*



*

OLD BUSINESS 
PB 2019-7  a.
Application of Nabil Khoury for Amended Site Development Plan approval and a Wetland Permit for a proposed 35 ft. by 75 ft. 4 bay garage, a 480 sq. ft. building addition and additional parking for an approximately 1.835 acre of property located at 2311 Crompond Road as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Westchester Auto Exchange” prepared by Architectural Visions, PLLC latest revision dated August 28, 2019 (see prior PB 10-07)

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated good evening.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening.


Mr. Joel Greenberg introduced himself and stated the architect from Architectural Visions on the project. I just want to bring you up-to-date. As the Chairwoman mentioned, we have submitted our revised drawings on the 20th of August of this year and we responded to the consultant’s comments, Mike’s and Chris’s. We also got a comment letter from Martin Rogers, the Building Inspector, I think it was the latter part of last week. We had discussions with him today and I have a submission which responds to all of his comments. We’ve responded to all the comments from both consultants Chris and Mike and we had, as many of you were there, a site inspection on this past Sunday to walk the project, to walk the site and went through the whole existing layout and how the proposed layout would work. We also have, as you can see from the sketches, there’s an entrance off of Buttonwood Road. We’ve also added some additional landscaping on Buttonwood Road which is all the way up the corner – right there, a little bit to the left, which is wide open now. We’re just basically closing that off to have a more controlled entrance / exit over there, ingress and egress and that additional landscape will be added. Also, as you can see, there’s a rather odd shape of the property, the usable piece of the property because we had the wetlands were flagged back in June of 2018 and as you can see that whole area along the edge of the wetlands is heavily landscaped for a buffer between the portions that were being used and the wetlands. Also I might add too is that the New York City DEP and East Hudson Authority are proposing a phosphorous project starting from our project – starting from Route 202 all the way down and along this property line and coming around and coming back and eventually goes under a culvert which is under Buttonwood Road. We’ve also agreed to provide any easements that the DEP or the town wants to have access to that project and we’re hoping that project will commence sometime next year. As Chairwoman mentioned, the project consists of a four bay garage and in addition to the existing office bay. Also the big, big canopy that you see over the front area will be removed obviously and we’ve provided a storm water pollution prevention plan. We have on site storm water management. Basically we would like to, since we’ve gone through all this, we’ve responded to the consultant’s comments, memos and we’d like to request a public hearing at the next meeting.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether we’ll have the public hearing but anyway what I wanted to – we all were there this past Sunday and we saw the site. I arrived unfortunately a little bit late. I don’t know whether the board members want to address anything that they saw in particular. No, yes?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the issue with the wetlands is an issue because the project is running right up against it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked everything’s in the buffer right?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes. There’s nothing in the wetlands. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the project’s actually running up to the wetlands itself. I wanted too – if this project weren’t approved, what happens to the plan to put the phosphorous system in?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we sent over the revised site plan to the East of Hudson Corporation which is a corporation conglomerate of about 12 municipalities and we’re going to be meeting with the representative out on the site a little later this week to go over whether or not this is a feasible site for a phosphorous reduction project. Once we do meet, we would then be able to identify the location. There’s a variety of methodologies but to address other concerns, the onsite storm water issue is the other issue. Since this is in the DEP watershed and there is impervious area being proposed, that still needs to be treated regardless of whether or not there’s going to be a phosphorous reduction. That has not really necessarily been fully prepared on this application. The application, the proposal is to complete the disturbance within the buffer. It’s not a disturbance within the wetland in itself but within the 100 foot wetland buffer. It has to be taken into consideration and properly mitigated and that’s vis-à-vis storm water controls. I think aggressive landscaping plantings and the potentially alterations to the proposed building location and the amount of landscaping which is what the board needs to discuss and decide prior to scheduling a public hearing.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well, but I guess we have right now maybe a willing participant to give us the easement so the question would become, would we still be able to cooperate with them if the project didn’t happen?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so my question really was, they need the easement to do that project.

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes. And I think that’s a fair compromise that the applicant is willing to provide an easement for that sort of project which would help offset some of the mitigation requirements for the disturbance within the buffer.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated yes, but this is real disturbance. I mean this is not just 20 feet.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that Mike and I were talking about which Joel would have to analyze is the four bay garage is perpendicular to the building and extends back almost to the wetland. If that could be redesigned, made parallel to the building, shrunk some way or something. At least Joel needs to analyze and his clients need to analyze if that’s possible.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated yes, I feel like we need some alternatives because it’s about as far as we’ve gone to lean up against the wetland like that. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated Chris had mentioned this comment to me about switching the building 90 degrees. We’ll certainly look at it but I think the problem there is, and if you look – Chris if you can show where the septic system is, keep going, where the lower exit to the garage is, keep going up there. Right there. That’s where the existing septic system is so to turn the building around you’d be basically eliminating the septic system and I don’t think we really want to touch that septic system because right now it’s in its location, it’s working well and as Jeff mentioned we certainly don’t want to get a septic system any closer to the wetlands. It’s functioning. It’s not affecting the wetlands. We will certainly look into the possibility of perhaps if we can rearrange some of that parking so we don’t have the two corners of the parking lot, if you could just show that Chris, all the way to the right, see those parking spaces there? Keep going. Right, right, down, down, to your right. Look at that line, upper and lower corners are buried within five feet of the wetlands. We can certainly look into the possibility of rearranging that so that heavy landscaping we have doesn’t come almost to a point but actually flows around the entire perimeter of the wetlands.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated to address your comments it would be to pull back some of the impervious area being proposed to create, I’m just going to throw a number out there, 30 feet of buffer…

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated a larger buffer of landscaping.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated yes, that sounds…

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated I think that would allay some of the concerns that you have.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think there’s a prefunded escrow account on this because based on the site inspection we do need to get our arborist out there to take a look at some of the trees.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes, you and I spoke about that. I think the funds are there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll authorize him to go out and we’ll let your client know – and he just goes out – I guess we’ll have him geo-locate the trees?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes, he will geo-locate the trees and then tag them in the field for you to upload onto your site plan. You can get a surveyor out there but we’ll provide you the information.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated that’s no problem.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and there’s no way to relocate the septic if they’re old or there’s no access to a public along 202?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded there’s no sewer.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated from your mouth to God’s ear. We’d love that. That would solve a lot of problems and then we could do some of the other things that Chris was talking about. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back for comments from staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
Mr. Joel Greenberg stated thank you very much. And to those who celebrate, Happy New Year.

PB 2019-14  b.
Application of Two Bayview Road, LLC for Amended Site Development Plan approval for a proposed 8,000 sq. ft. mechanic shop for property located at 2 Bayview Road as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Amended Site Plan for Two Bayview Road, LLC” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated August 28, 2019 (see prior PB’s 11-11 & 2018-1)

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’ve determined on this that there’s no need for a public hearing.
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s your option, right. It’s not required. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I would recommend that we – I make a motion that we don’t have a public hearing and that we prepare a resolution for the next meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s fine. 

Mr. Tim Cronin stated thanks, appreciate it. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

PB 2019-5  c.
Application of New York SMSA Limited Partnership, for the property of Bezo Enterprises, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a proposed public utility personal wireless facility (telecommunications tower) on a portion of a 6 acre parcel of property located at 52 Montrose Station Road as shown on a 11 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary and Final Site Plans” prepared by Colleen Connolly, P.E. latest revision dated July  15, 2019.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated good evening. My name is Michael Sheridan. I’m an associate with Snyder & Snyder the attorneys for New York SMSA Limited Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless. As was just indicated, Verizon Wireless is looking to locate a public utility wireless telecommunication facility at 52 Montrose Station Road. Since last we met, we received comments from town staff as well as the consultant to the board in connection with the application. We also scheduled and held a balloon test on May 4th. We have since compiled responses to all the comments that were received as well as the visual resource analysis which we submitted to this board a couple of weeks ago. My understanding is that that submission will be sent out to the board’s consultant if it hasn’t been already. We request that the board direct that happen if it hasn’t been already. I’m happy to answer any questions about that submission if you have any tonight. I would also request, if possible, that the public hearing be scheduled for the next meeting and that I don’t believe that the board has sent its intent to be lead agency yet, at this point. I’d request that that be done as well. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated obviously you know you all received that big thick packet. The visual assessment report’s a really good report that’s in there. Then as you’re used to, there’s dozens of pages of real technical stuff that the applicant and the Town Engineer are talking about. And then there’s also possibly some variances that would be required.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated correct. That would be the other thing that I would request is to the extent that the variances are required, which we believe there are some with the current application that it be referred to the Zoning Board so we can go get those applications. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated so staff has no objection for the denial letter to be issued based upon the dimensional requirements, the setbacks and then that could be simultaneously reviewed by the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated to avoid confusion if this board could initiate its intent to be lead agency this evening that would be appreciated. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated refer back.

Mr. Robert Foley stated refer back. Do I mention about being lead agent?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that the Planning Board declare our intent to be lead agency.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and then maybe also mention for the record that the Planning Board has no problem with the applicant proceeding to the Zoning Board. If the Zoning Board asks we would say yes, the Planning Board is okay with sending him there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do I have to state that?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no it’s fine.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated obviously we’re referring the big huge packet. I haven’t done it yet but we’re referring it to our outside consultant for his review. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ve got several things here now. So that becomes part of that motion. 
With all in favor saying "aye". 
Mr. Michael Sheridan asked the final question, did you have any questions about the packet or we’ll wait for your consultant’s comments? And two, scheduling a public hearing at some point. Could we do that for the next meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know. It depends on how far along…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we have a threshold question pertaining to the zoning, the location as to whether or not it’s justifiable on the location shown, if there’s an alternative location on site that wouldn’t require -- that’s the argument that the applicant will need to make as to why they’re initially requesting a variance when there’s I think a 7 acre site, why it can’t be located elsewhere.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and we don’t have any problem with going to the Zoning Board but I can hear the Zoning Board because I go to those meetings, asking me, well is the Planning Board happy with the tower here? If the Planning Board is not happy with the tower here, then why are you in front of the Zoning Board already? Shouldn’t you sort of more finalize the location? But as long as you’re willing to have those discussions and start the process with the Zoning Board that’s okay.
Mr. Michael Sheridan stated certainly willing to start the process with the Zoning Board. If this board has any questions, I’m happy to discuss it this evening, go through whatever part of the packet you want to go through of if you are waiting for your consultant’s comments.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether we should try to have a public hearing next time. There’s issues all around. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I have had conversations with people who are interested in attending the public hearing. There’ll be a lot of public comment. So you may want to get yourself a little more organized before you go to a public hearing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s what I’m saying. I don’t think we should have one next time.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the month will give staff time to review the application, be able to comment as to the location, have an opportunity to discuss the reasoning as to the location with the applicant and be able to prep to prepare for proper response and public hearing.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated so you’ll review the packet. We’ll have some discussion at the next meeting and then you’ll schedule the public hearing. I just want to make sure.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if it all goes well in October, the public hearing would be scheduled for November.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated and you may not need to go to Zoning if you meet with us. We’ll talk.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated thank you.

PB 2017-3   d. Application of VS Construction Corp., for the property of Roa Hook Road Associates, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a Contractor’s Yard for an approximately 3.5 acre parcel of property located on the north side of Roa Hook Road as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Ciarcia Engineering, P.C. latest revision dated August 19, 2019.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board; Dan Ciarcia from Ciarcia Engineering representing VS Construction who operates the contractor’s yard at 180 Roa Hook Road. The property, we haven’t been before you in a while so it’s just a quick recap. The property had previously been the site of the town’s trash compactor. This property is zoned M1. The town had utilized it for industrial activities. It had been leased by CK Construction. It was staging the trucking operation in there and other trucking contractors. VS Construction began leasing the property and relocated to this site around 2004. The issue that, or the milestone was in 2010 the code was amended for the M1 zone requiring a special use permit for a contractor’s yard in that zoning designation. I think the complication was that this had been a pre-existing use at that location and the amendment to the code contemplated grandfathering facilities that had been prior to the enactment of the local law utilize this contractor’s yard, however, what came out was there really wasn’t a site plan that was ever approved for the site. Our reason for being here was I guess to sort of tidy up the operation and get the site plan in order; the site plan and the special use permit, which would enable us to conduct the operation that VS has over there. Since we last appeared, there were some issues that needed clearing up, notably we were utilizing screening equipment. The screening equipment required permitting from the Westchester County Department of Health. That has been obtained and we have the necessary permits to operate that. We had previously shown the board a crusher on the site and we were seeking the approval of the Town Board to allow rock crushing on a very limited basis. The reason being was that the operation really is incidental to VS Construction. This was really not intended to be a solid waste facility that would have tipping fees and so forth. This would be just for the VS operation. So right now we’ve taken the crusher off. That’s still a pending matter but since we don’t know what the timing of that is and when and if the Town Board decides to entertain that request. So there’s only the screening apparatus is shown on the property in the site plan you have before you. We’ve added some bins for the storage of the various materials that get screened. I think the other big thing was the survey. There was some ambiguity as to what property was owned by the Roa Hook Associates which is the owner that acquired the land from the Town of Cortlandt. I think we’ve clarified that. The surveyor had some notes on the survey which I think muddied the waters in terms of what was the subject property. I think we’ve cleared that up. At this point, we’re trying to address a number of questions that have come up and hopefully moving toward scheduling a public hearing for this so we could work toward getting a site plan approval and the special use permit required to operate the contractor’s yard.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked but Dan, your short EAF still talks about rock crushing.

Mr. Michael Cunningham responded so that may be for the Town Board in the coming months, a public hearing about amendment to the code that could allow rock crushing.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated certainly we could remove that from the EAF. Our hope was that we’d be able to tell you that that was part of what we were doing. I guess it’s a procedural question whether we leave it on there or not. Maybe just in terms of full disclosure to the Planning Board it’s good that we’re saying we’d like to do that. Whether we can do it or not is yet to be seen.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s up to them.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated some correction to the record. This zone is the M1A zone. It’s not the M1 zone. Also, the reason the applicant is here is a violation was issued both by the Department of Health, New York State Department of Conservation and the town for operations vis-à-vis the rock crushing and processing without an approved site plan. The other major item; the right-of-way issue, the egress has been resolved. We did have a staff meeting a few months back. There is rights and access to the property so that’s no longer an issue but there is the issue of the encroachment onto lands owned by New York State and Camp Smith that has still not been resolved on the site plan so there has to be a restoration plan provided and details provided to no longer allow for encroachment onto adjoining an adjacent property. 

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated as far as the Camp Smith thing we are showing some rocks and we can certainly work with staff about…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s the restoration, not necessarily no longer. You have to get in touch with Camp Smith and State to revise and restore that disturbed area to their satisfaction.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the end result is storage and top soil screening? That’s it?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded but it’s also the base of operations for VS Construction. So they do have rolling stock. They have trucks that are kept there. They have their shop where they maintain all their construction equipment. So periodically there’s…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated so storage of construction equipment and top soil screening.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated but I just wanted to clarify. It’s not just necessarily a processing…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you have people come and go. I understand that. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated it appears there’s more work to be done by staff and Town Board so I’m going to refer this back to staff.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated as the Assistant Town Attorney mentioned, there’s a potential for a public hearing in the next few months in which case we’re hopeful that everything can be wrapped up within that time frame.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated I guess the question for us then would be whether it’s prudent for us to pursue the site plan approval and special use permit in the absence of the crushing or really should we be working towards seeing what the Town Board’s determination…

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded I think the paths are going to be very concurrent so I would proceed with revising the site plan as the...

Mr. Dan Ciarcia asked and put the crusher back?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated and we’ll get you more information on how we’re going to handle the Camp Smith restoration.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated we’ll be working with staff and I guess hopefully hearing from the Town Board on this matter. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

*



*



*

NEW BUSINESS 
PB 2019-16 a.
Application of Henio Bastys for Preliminary Plat approval for a 2 lot major subdivision of a 10.98 acre parcel of property that is developed with nine (9) multi-family apartment buildings located on the south side of Scenic Drive approximately 500 ft. north of Baltic Place as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Plat for Nida Associates, Inc.” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated March 20, 2019.
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated he is the owner of the apartments you know as Amberlands.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s the problem here? Why do  you need the two lot subdivision? 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s basically a liability issue, tax issue, family issue. It’s purely financial. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and we’re not supposed to deal with that right?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked it has nothing to do with the sewage treatment plant?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, zero.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked nothing to do with Beaver Ridge down the road?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, I know nothing about it. Beaver Ridge? What’s that?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded the old Furnace Dock Inc.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no it has nothing to do with that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked no connection?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded in other words, this is a line on a map. Truly, I come here sometimes and you say I’m just drawing a line on a map but that’s all we’re doing here. We’re not building anything. We’re not improving anything. We’re just drawing a line on a map. Staff has looked at it. We had a meeting with them. I didn’t think there was anything particularly offensive about it. And Chris has said that there are times when we do subdivisions in the town for tax reasons or whatever and they usually don’t raise too many hackles by the board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is this person going to own each of these lots? Will Henio Bastys own the two lots?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded the whole piece. He owns both sides. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked he’ll both after the subdivision?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the purpose again is?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what is the point?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded financial, tax liability, family.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked taxes change if it’s subdivided?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I guess you would say that if you were going to mortgage – if you were going to take a mortgage out on a piece of property you don’t have to take it out on the whole piece of the property. You can take it out on half the piece of property. You can encumber a portion of the property instead of the whole property. Things like that. I call them taxes. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ve met with the applicant to discuss this. The major issue at the moment would be redefining some easements that would cross the two properties so it’s mostly technical which we will coordinate within a review memo in response to the Planning Board. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated thank you.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
PB 2019-17 b.
 Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for the renewal of a Junkyard Special Permit for property located on the east side of New York and Albany Post Road, 500 feet north of Dutch Street as shown on a drawing entitled “Brookfield Resource Management Site Plan” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated October 22, 2010 (see prior PB’s 9-09 & 13-13).

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair much to Mr. Kessler’s chagrin I am here on behalf of Brookfield Resource Management. David Steinmetz from the Law Firm of Zarin & Steinmetz.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked we determined that also we can waive a public hearing on this as well?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I move that we waive the public hearing and have staff prepare a resolution re-approving the special permit.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked is that just, Steve, because you want me out of here?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and more. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all. Chris if you need anything from us in connection with preparing the resolution, please just let me know.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ll just be performing a routine site inspection like we do every – but that should be scheduled over the next week or so.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked do you need to schedule through us or you’ll reach out to Tom directly?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we usually reach out to Tom but if we don’t hear back from them we’ll contact you.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated perfect. Thank you all. Have a good night.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you too.
PB 2019-18 c.
Application of Matrix Development, LLC, for the property of Naeem Khalid & Shehla Naqui,  for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit and for Tree Removal, Steep Slope and Wetland Permits for a proposed Solar Energy System to be located at 300 Furnace Dock Road as shown on 2 drawings entitled “Existing Condition & Constraints Plan” and “Sketch Site Plan” both prepared by Badey & Watson, Surveying and Engineering, P.C. dated August 28, 2019 (see prior PB 3-13)

Mr. Steve Miller stated good evening. My name is Steve Miller. I’m with Badey & Watson, Surveying and Engineering PC. I’m here tonight representing Matrix Development LLC. With me is Michael Dowd from Matrix who will give a little presentation later. We’re here - this is our initial meeting with the board. We have provided a site sketch site plan and an environmental constraints plan and required applications for our initial presentation to the town. We acknowledge the need for a special use permit in order to have the solar energy system and that steep slope, and wetland permits are also required. At this point we’re looking for some feedback from the Planning Board about their initial reaction to the project. We acknowledge that there is other development plans that need to be put together. We’re hopeful that we’ll be able to be directed to proceed with the wetland and tree analysis part of the project and if appropriate that it’s – we could initiate a referral to the Town Board for the special use permit. I’d be happy to take any questions at this point or Michael can follow up at this point.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked just in terms of the wetlands, you are building in the buffer? Are you building in the wetlands?

Mr. Steve Miller responded we’re building in the buffer.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and that’s the point of the wetland permit.

Mr. Steve Miller responded correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked one question I got when someone came in to see me today was, who will retain ownership of the entire parcel if this gets approved? Right now you’re contract vendee. Would you buy all of the land from the current owners?

Mr. Michael Dowd responded yes. Matrix Development has entered in an agreement. We’re currently in the option period but we intend to purchase the property and we will hold the property.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated just so the board is aware, as a courtesy we had extended Badey & Watson draft comments for the last two solar applications so they can get a handle on the typical comments that staff and the Planning Board have. I also want to stress to the applicant that there is a New York State DEC regulated dam on the property in which we would like to know what sort of impacts this potential solar farm would have on that and to make sure that the dam is brought into compliance with all the regulatory requirements. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is there going to be an ongoing maintenance required of that dam if they buy the property?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes and that’s privately owned so the applicant would have to take responsibility of that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’re aware of that?

Mr. Michael Dowd responded we are. We do have an engineering report from the surveyor of the dam so we understand that.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked back to the wetlands question, which part of the property is in – which part of the solar array is in the buffer? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s hard to see but the arrays, I think the green hatched area is environmentally constrained. It’s hard to see but underneath some of the arrays is white which is not environmentally constrained but I think…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated mostly all of it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right here, you see the white underneath.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so this array extends back into the constrained area. These arrays extend into the constrained area. But there is a, generally speaking, there’s a white area on the map which you’re representing is not environmentally constrained and that’s where you’re trying to put the arrays?
Mr. Michael Dowd responded correct. Just to clarify one thing if I could. In terms of the construction in the buffer, solar is very different than a foundation of a house or a road. There’s no impervious surface. From an ecological perspective – solar is a very different construction than a typical brick and mortar building, a concrete foundation. Solar is going to be built over the existing land. From an ecological perspective, the area that we’re in the buffer will remain continuous with the wetlands and we’re not going to impact that in any way. The Army Corps of Engineer generally looks at the post that support the solar panels as a non-impact to wetlands and so I just want to frame that out. We’re not looking to dig in the buffer. The grass is still going to be there. It’ll still be green. The frogs, and the toads, and the bunnies are still…

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated but you will be removing trees.

Mr. Michael Dowd responded on the property we do plan on removing trees.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated so you are changing somewhat the balance.

Mr. Michael Dowd stated most of the tree removal isn’t actually in the buffer but we’ll outline exactly what that is. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated we’ll have to see what that is.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated some of the finer points that the town ordinance which is missed considerably is removal of tress on steep slopes require additional mitigation as opposed to non steep sloped areas and then also how trees are removed within wetland buffers are also looked at a little less favorably on site. So we will be referring this to our town’s environmental consultant, the tree arborist, to review the wetland impacts and also the tree removal. So we’ll be coordinating those studies with you over the next few weeks. So we just want to let you know and for the board’s knowledge, the orange, I believe, is the steep sloped areas on the site that have been identified.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how many arrays are you putting in here?

Mr. Michael Dowd responded it’s a 1.5 megawatt AC system. It’s roughly 28 rows of panels; 28 structures.

Mr. Robert Foley asked of different dimension? Of different lengths?

Mr. Michael Dowd responded correct. They vary in lengths.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated each one of those lines you’re saying is 28…

Mr. Michael Dowd responded each one of those blue lines is – there are 28 of those blue lines.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked 28 blue lines so you could be talking, I don’t know, 2,000 panels?

Mr. Michael Dowd responded I don’t have the panel count off the top of my head. It’s 1.5 megawatts AC.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked that 1.5 is half of the 3 point megawatt that…

Mr. Michael Dowd responded the egg farm is. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a smaller project. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s a smaller project.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked half of the one on Croton Avenue?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked did you say that the Corps of Engineers mentioned there wouldn’t be any impact on the ground creatures: frogs, turtles? Have they actually done a definitive study on that?

Mr. Michael Dowd responded I’ve done a fair amount of solar projects in Army Corps designated wetlands and the impact - the post, the metal posts that are driven in the ground are not considered an impact under Army Corps regulations.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and there’s no impact of the solar panels in any shape or form to any ground creatures?

Mr. Michael Dowd responded no. Actually, in a lot of respects the ground creatures like to stay underneath the panels. It gives them some shelter. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated similar to the Route 6 case that was discussed in July, I wasn’t here in July but after that meeting, I can’t remember if the Planning Board directed them or if we directly them but they went to the Town Board because they had some dimensional threshold questions that they needed direction from the Town Board before they wanted to do much more before the Planning Board. I think that’s the same recommendation that we’re going to make here. Given the somewhat complexities with the site, before they do a lot of work with the Planning Board we want them to go to the Town Board and have the Town Board hear the presentation and then get some direction of whether they’re going to continue with the Planning Board.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back and also refer to the Town Board?

Mr. Michael Cunningham responded I would recommend that you direct staff to prepare a memo for the Town Board, summarizing the proceedings here.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the motion is to refer this back but also to direct staff to the Town Board, direct staff to do a memo to the Town Board.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated yes, we will copy the Town Board along with the Planning Board on the review memorandum since both boards have review authority. 
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and just for the members of the audience, you know that if this comes back the same level of discussion that happened on the other case will ultimately happen on this case, but their next step will be at the Town Board. So you can keep in touch with my office to let you know when they’re going to be in front of the Town Board. 

Mr. Michael Dowd stated if I could also make a note to thank you for coming out. This is really early in the process and part of the process is get your feedback as neighbors. We try to address those in the design and the Planning Board process before we get too far down the road. I’ll give you my business card. I’ll be glad to sit down with each of you and kind of go through what our plans are and what we’re looking at so we can try and address some of your concerns.

Mr. stated [inaudible].
Ms. stated [inaudible].

Mr. Michael Dowd stated thank you.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated no it’s not a public hearing.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated any resident can contact either myself or Chris to discuss – if you have a written comment you can provide them to us and we’ll make sure the board gets those comments. 

PB 2019-19 d.
Application of SBA Communications Corporation, for the property of Reed Partners LP/William R. Reed for the Re-Certification of Special Use Permit #41-09 for an existing cellular tower located at 5742 Albany Post Road as shown on an 8 page set of drawings entitled “Annsville NYCNNY5524” prepared by Burtner Engineering Services, PLLC latest revision dated June 11, 2019 (see prior PB 2017-19)

Mr. Leonard Cohen stated good evening Madame Chair person, members of the board, Leonard Cohen with the Law Firm of Cuddy & Feder, 445 Hamilton Avenue in White Plains, NY. On behalf of SBA Communications Corporation, the application before you tonight is simply a re-certification of SBA’s existing specialty permit. SBA is the tower owner at this property. The application is made in conformance of Chapter 277, section 18 of the town code. I had a conversation with Director Preziosi prior to making the application. I believe I submitted all the materials that were requested but I haven’t had a conversation with him about that yet so I’m open to answer any questions you or he has.
Mr. Michael Preziosi responded so I did have a conversation and followed up with some email correspondence. Unfortunately I wasn’t able to touch base over the last few days since the submittal came in but he has provided the information that I had requested which was to provide certification based on the most recent building permit. The town has been back-and-forth with the variety of different tower owners on a variety of different sites and it is our opinion that the tower owners become absentee landlords so-to-speak. They don’t keep a good updated log of what’s actually on those towers so what I would recommend would be to provide the re-certification approval and then we would require a tower climb once the tower is approved with the way it is additions to some of the radio equipment on the tower so that we get a full as-built. But for now, the applicant has addressed our comments sufficiently to get the re-certification. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t believe there’s a public hearing required so there’d be a resolution needed to approve a re-certification of the existing tower.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated as I was saying, there would be one condition which would be, provided that once the most recent permits completed and closed out that that would require a tower climb to confirm all their equipment on the pole.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we not require a public hearing on this application and that a resolution be prepared at the next meeting to approve the application with the understanding that the applicant supply the necessary information regarding additional permits for components on the tower.

Mr. Leonard Cohen responded I’m perfectly amenable to that condition. I just want to be clear. That’s a condition in the resolution but obviously that couldn’t be done until after the equipment’s installed.
Mr. Michael Preziosi responded correct.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated it will be a condition in the resolution.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but we’ll make sure it’s worked in such a way that it doesn’t hinder you from doing what you need to do.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ll give you sufficient time. We’ll touch base and it’s 90 or 120 days. We understand that there’s osprey nest in one of the towers that can’t be moved for a couple of weeks so we’ll work with you on that and then once those antennas get switched out based on the open permit, then we would like to have the updated as-built and keep it current as applications come in.

Mr. Leonard Cohen stated the re-certification is for a five-year term but that’s contingent upon having the tower climb within a 90-day or 120-day period?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes because there’s two open permits, as we were explaining, one for Verizon I think and one for AT&T. It’s a little bit of an issue with who’s responsible for recertifying what, but as we discussed, you provided the documentation showing what you felt and what your design professionals felt was accurately on the equipment as of today for the recertification and we just want to make sure that we keep our pole current and the town has all the applicable records as we move forward.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked but do you just want to make sure – do you need to recertify by a certain date? We’ll put language in the resolution that that’s okay.

Mr. Leonard Cohen responded the last recertification was done in 2014. It’s a five-year term so it expires December 31st, at the end of the year.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think you’ll have plenty of time. We’re in contact with the Verizon applicant about getting – so they’ll be doing the work within the next few weeks and they have an open permit. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there’s a motion on the floor which I seconded. 

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Leonard Cohen stated thank you very much.

*



*



*

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair it’s 10:35 p.m., I move that we adjourn.


*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2019
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